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Management commentary

Key figures and financial ratios

2618119 2017118

{17 months} {12 months) 201617 201516 2014115
Key figures (IFRS) (IFRS) (DK GAAP) (DK GAAP) (DK GAAP)
Income statement, EURm
Revenue 1.670 599 584 518 439
Gross prefit 988 441 394 352 277
R&D tosls 24 30 28 26 21
EBITDA 104 120 113 101 56
Adjusted EBITDA 316 132 116 101 &5
Amerlisation and depreciation etc, 183 20 42 42 28
Operating profit (EBIT) (79) 100 71 59 27
Net financial items (220) (10 (3] (3} 4]
{Loss)/Profit before tax (289) 90 65 56 26
{Loss)/Prolit for the year (285) 70 50 38 1¢
Balance sheet, EURmM
Agsets 6,691 615 581 475 418
Equity 1,982 318 260 212 184
Other key figures, EURm
Investment in property, plant and equipment, net 39 18 20 16 T
Cash flow from operating activities 188 94 70 92 75
Free cash flow to firm {FCFF) 85 33 {29) 21) 49
Average number of employees 10,899 4,175 4,035 3,956 3,700
Financial ratios
Gross prefit margin ] 74 67 68 83
EBITDA margin < 20 19 20 13
Adjusted EBITDA margin ie 22 20 20 15
Profit margin (EBIT margin) (] 17 12 11 6
Return on equity {25) 24 21 19 12
Equity ratio 30 52 45 45 44

Key figures and financial ratios for 2018/19 and 2017/18 are prepared in accordance with IFRS, All other figures have been prepared in
accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act. For a description of the effect of the transition to IFRS, please refer to note 1.1. Key
figures and financial ratios for 2016/17, 2015/16 and 2014/15 have been fransiated from DKK to EUR at the exchange rate at the end of
each period, and not in accordance with [AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rafes. Please refer to note 1.1 in the consol-
idated financial statements for an analysis on how the DK GAAP figures for 2016/17, 2015/16 and 2014/15 would be adjusted to IFRS as
the basis of preparation.

Merger description

On 1% March 2019 the EQT funds, that are owners of Sivantos Pte. Ltd. ("Sivantos”}, and the Tepholm and Westermann families, that are
owners of Widex A/S ("Widex"), announced the successful completion of the merger of the two companies.

The merger created a leading hearing aid company with yearly revenue of more than EUR 1.7 biffion, mare than 10,000 employees and one
of the strongest R&D teams in the industry. The merged company operates under the name WS Audiclogy (“WSA") housing a unique multi-
branded portfolio of product and business brands, including Signia, Widex, Rexton, AudioService, Coselgi, audibene, HearlJSA, Bloom,
TruHearing etc.

WGEA combines more than 140 years of company industry experience and offers a broad and competitive range of innovative, high-quality
hearing aid products across several brands, price segments and instrument types well positioned to serve multiple customers with the right
products at relevant price points. The product portfolio comprises BTE, ITEz and Receiver-in-the-Cana! (“RIC"} devices and related accesso-
ries, diagnostic tools, managed care and other services for the hearing care professionals and hearing impaired.

From an accounting point of view the Widex Group has been regarded as the accounting acquirer, and the Sivantos Group is regarded as
the accounting acquiree. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements therefore represent a continuation of the financiat position,
performance and cash flows of the Widex Group and a purchase price allocation has been prepared for the Sivantos Group with an acqui-
sition date of 28 February 2019 as outlined in note 5.1. on business cembinations.

To align the accounting periods in the combined group, Widex Group has changed its accounting period end from 30 April to 30 September,
such that the accounting period will be from 1 October to 30 September. Therefore, the consolidated financial statements for 2018/19, which
is the year in which the accounting period is changed, cover 17 months from 1 May 2018 to 30 September 2018, whereas the comparative
figures cover 12 months from 1 May 2017 to 30 April 2018. These comparative figures are prepared in accordance to IFRS. The financials
for the Sivantos Group are included in the consolidated financials from closing of the merger, i.e. { March 2019 to 30 September 2019.
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Financial review

For the extended fiscal year 2018/19, WSA delivered a total revenue of 1,670 mEUR driven in particular by the merger. The underlying
business delivered solid revenue growth driven by product launches like Signia Nx platform and Widex Evoke as well as other organic growth
initiatives across the business parcutarly in the eCommerce business (Audibene) and Managed care in US (TruHearing). The growth was
however negatively impacted by challenges in US Whalesales mainly driven by the lack of a lithium-ion rechargeable solution in the Widex
product porifolio, implementation of an ERP system and the loss of the Kirktand private label centract in CostCo in June 2019 combined with
a decline in performance in the US retail business.

Gross profil ended at 998 mEUR corresponding 1o 59,8% gross margin. The gross matgin declined compared 1o previous years dug to a
combination of change in business mix driven by the merger and as the Group was impacted by lower wholesale gross margins especially
in the US.

Eamings befere Interest, Tax, Depreciations and Amoriizations (EBITDA) ended at EUR 104 million corresponding to an EBITDA margin of
6,2% driven by the lower gross margin and significant one-time cost related to merger, transformation projects, harmonization of accounting
policies etc.

Adjusting for normalization items Adjusted EBITDA ended at EUR 316 miillion correspending to an adjusted EBITDA margin of 18.9%.
Adjusted EBITDA margin for the period is lower than previous years for the Widex Group mainly due to the challenges in US Wholesales
with the lack of a Lithium lon rechargeable sclution in the Widex product portfolic, implementation of an ERP system and the [oss of the
Kirkland private [abel contract in CestCo combined with a decline in performance in the US refail business.

The Group considers one-time costs and one-time gains as normalization items if they are non-recurring in nature. These are exciuded in
Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA margin. The total normalisation for the extended fiscal year 2018/19 amount to EUR 211.5 million
and is mainly driven by cost related to the Merger of EUR 123.9 millicn, ERP imptementation of EUR 17.3 million, Transformation projects
of EUR 7.2 million, restructuring cost of EUR 23.6 million and harmaonisation of accounting policies of EUR 17.8 million,

Operating results (EBIT) ended at EUR -79 million corresponding to an EBIT margin of -4,7%. Adjusting for one-time cost of EUR 211.5
miliion the operating results ended at EUR 132.5 million or adj EBIT margin of 7.9%.

Net Financial items ended at -220 mEUR driven in particular by interest expenses of -127 mEUR, Foreign currency losses of -30,2 mEUR
and fair value losses on derivatives and other financial instruments of -66 mEUR. Details on Net Financial items are specified in nofe 4.4

With the negative operating result and negative net financial items ithe Group result before tax ended at -298 mEUR and Group net results
after tax ended at -285 mEUR, Despite the negative net results after tax the Group remain well positioned with an equity ratio of 30% and a
solid financial and liquidity position. The capital siructure and financial items are described in detail in Note 4.

Reported financial results cannot be compared to earlier provided guidance from Widex Group due to the merger with Sivantos Group.
However still the adjusted EBITDA margin is lower than previous years. Despite the lower adjusted EBITDA margin Management is satisfied
with the resuits considering the significant efforts from the organization in connection with the merger and the significant progress on merging
the previous two companies into one company with one joint purpose and one jeint strategy.

Outlook

The merger between two leading hearing aid companies forming WS Audinlogy Group has created a sirong player. The Group aims at
acceieraling growth using the unique portfolio of differentiated product brands to strengthen its market penetration and in parallel enhancing
efficiencies to enable additional investments into R&D and supply chain. This will allow the Group to expand access to hearing healthcare
via its dedicated salesforce by product brand through even more innovative sclutions across a wide range of hearing needs, increasing the
quality of life of millions of people and thereby delivering on the purpose of WS Audiology being “unlocking human potential by making
wonderful sound part of everyone's life”

l.eading technologies, flexible business models and a broad geographical footprint combinad with a unique portfolic of brands and products
puts the Group in a strong position to capture substantial business apportunities in the future. The Group plans fo gain market share in
traditional channels and key mature markets, and at the same time grow in new channels such as big box retailers, optical stores, and
managed care, The Greup is also well positioned to grow in emerging markets such as China with next generation business models being
developed and tested. Beside a stronger than market growth, the Greup is also focusing on further improving profit margins. The Group is
continuing o invest heavily into building capabilities and realize optimizations and synergies from the merger coupled with established
technologicat leadership driving sustainatie growth,

With the above fundamentais and plans in place, management expects to grow revenue for the group above 10%-pts for the financial year
2019/20 and improve the adjusted EBITDA margin to above 20% due to a combination of sironger earnings performance in Wholesale and
Retail as well as realization of synergies related to the merger

Risk management

The Group considers risk management as a key part of effective management and internal control. The Group has implemented internal
controf systems with the aim to provide a framework for ail processes and activities designed to give reasonable assurance regarding the
achievement of business objectives. Such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure. Assurance activities
monitor the efficiency and effectiveness of policies and operations and the status of compliance with statutory obligations. These can cover
the effectiveness of Internal Contrels (fC) over a broad range of areas such as sirategic, operations, financiat and compliance.

Strategy Risk

The hearing instrument industry has in the past experienced shifts to new key technologies, for recent shift towards rechargeable products
across all major markets. For the Group to remain competitive, it is essential to develop and bring to market new technologies and offerings
or to find new applications for existing technologies at an increasing speed.
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The Group operate in a competitive industry which is characterized by some downward price pressures. In order to compensate the pressure,
the Group constantly develops new products and offerings are constanily developed with new and enhanced consumer value propositions.
A good example to illustrate this is the launch of the new technelogy platform ‘Signia Xperience' in September 2019 which is the first hearing
aid platform with acoustic motion sensor integrated adding additional value to the consumer experience.

The risks of new competitor entrants offering over the counter ("OTC") products exist, but the impact on the current hearing aid business will
be limited. The OTC products will cater to a new segment of the market currently not in focus for the traditional hearing aid providers and
therefore the OTC products will likely attract new cusiomers towards {raditional hearing aids thus expanding the cverall market. WS Audiol-
ogy has the product portfolio, channel footprint and operational experience to quickly respond {o any developments in the OTC segment
when needed.

Reguiatory Risk

The Group’s business and products are subject to a variety of market conditions and medical product regulations in the jurisdictions in which
the Group operates. In particular, these regulations govern: (i} coverage and reimbursement by national health services or by private health
insurance services for the purchase of hearing instruments, (i) the supply of hearing instruments to the public and, (iii) the developmen,
testing, manufacturing, labefiing, premarket clearance and approval, and marketing, export and import of hearing instruments. Accordingly,
the Group's business may be affected by changes of laws and regulations, and in paricular, changes to the conditicns for coverage, the
way in which reimbursement is caloulated, and the ability to obtain national health insurance coverage.

Inteliectual Property Risk

intellectual property rights, particularly patents and trade secrets, play a significant role in product development and differentiation in our
industry. These proprietary rights are essential to the Group's business and its ability to compete effectively with other companies in the
market is greatly enhanced by the availability of any successful technofogy through licensing. The Group pursues a pelicy of generally
obtaining patent protection in key jurisdictions for patentable subject matter in the Group's proprietary devices and attempt to review third
party patenis and patent applications to the extent publicly available to develop an effective patent strategy, avoid infringement of third party
patents, identify licensing opportunities and monior patent claims of others.

Operational Risk

As any interruption in the cperations of the Group's manufacturing facilities may adversely affect the Group's businesses, financial conditions
and result of operations, the Group conducts preventive maintenance in all operating equipment. The operation of production piants and the
transfer of data between the affiliates and market organizations depend cn the efficient and uninterrupted operation of the Group’s's IT
landscape. The Group has experienced |T cyber-attacks, but has mitigated any material effects from these by ensuring a solid fevel of IT
security and clear Business Continuity Plans in case of breaches.

Finally, the Group not only relies on the timely supply from suppliers; for key components or products dual sourcing strategies are being
implemented on top of a constant monitoring of supplier quaiity and delivery performance

Compliance Risk

Conducting the Group’s business in an ethical accepiable manner is important to the Group's reputation, status with regulators and business
prospects. A pari of the Group's revenue is derived under contracts with government agencies and consequenily, the Group regularly
conduct business with public officiats and other politically exposed persons. The Group has policies in place to prevent direct or indirect acts
of corruption, bribery, anti-competitive behavior, money laundering, fraud, deception, and any other criminal or otherwise unacceptable
conduct. A faw firm, which is experienced in the duties of an ombudsman, has been entrusted with this funclion by the Group. The contacts
of the Ombudsman are available on the Group intranet and infernet.

l.egal Disputes Risk

The Group is and has been in the past, subject to legal disputes and regulatory proceedings in connection with business activities. Aithough
the Group maintains liability insurance in amounts it believes to be adequate and consistent with industry practice, the Group may not be
fully insured against afl potential damages that may arise out of any claims to which the Group may be party in the ordinary course of
business {though the Group is not aware of any such claims at preseni). A negative outcome of these proceedings might prevent the Group
from pursuing cerlain activities andfor require the Group to incur additional costs in order to do so and pay damages.

Currency Risk

The Greup’s international operations expose the Group to foreign currency exchange rate risks, particularly regarding fluctuations of the
USD, EUR, CAD and CNY in the ordinary course of business. The Group mainly employs the use of foreign exchange forward contracts to
mitigate the group's major risks from adverse FX movements’ impact on consolidated earnings for 3-12 months rolling forward.

As a matter of pringiple, the foreign currency risk is centrally managed by Groeup Treasury in cooperation with the Group entities in the
countries. Please refer to Note 4.2 in the Consolidated financial statements for further information.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as an unexpected loss in cash and earnings if the customer is unable to pay its obligations in due time. The Group may
incur losses if the credit quality of its customers deteriorates or if they default on their payment obligations to the Group, The Group's
exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables.

The Group has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. This includes the review of individuat
receivables and of individual customer creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis as well as the review of current economic trends, the
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analysis of historical bad debis on a portfolio basis and the considers country credit ratings. Credit evaluations are performed on all cus-
tomers requiring credit over a certain amount. The Group does not require collateral in respect of financial assets. However, the Group has
credit enhancements such as personal guaraniees and share pledge related to customer [oans.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of financial assets is represented by their carrying amount. There were no significant concentrations
of credit risks as of 30 September 2019. Please refer to Notes 3.4 and 3.7 for more informaticn.

Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk results from the Group’s potential inability to meet its financial liabilities, in particular, paying ifs suppliers and servicing its
interest-bearing debt. In addition to having implemented effective working capital and cash management, the Group has implemented short-
term and medium-term fiquidity forecasis. Group Treasury monitors the level of expecied cash inflows on trade and other receivables to-
gether with expected cash outflows on trade and other payables, Please refer to Note 4.2 for more information,

Interest Rate Risk
As of 30 September 2019, the Group's long-term debt consists of secured term floating rate loans of which a certain proportion have been
swapped for fixed interest rales. Please refer to Note 4.2 for more information.

Parent company
The parent company is a holding company that has been established in accordance with the aforementioned combination of the Sivantes
and Widex Group, and as described in note 1. The Parent company has not had other significant transactions during the year.
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Statutory report on corporate social responsibility

Following the approval of the merger of Widex Group and Sivantos Group to form WS Audiology, work has started to align the policies,
actions, systems and procedures, and processes to ensure a company-wide CSR policy. Some of that work is still ongoing and will be
completed during 2020.

For a brief description of the Group's business model, please refer to section above on Merger Description,

WS Audiology has introduced a new Code of Conduct to replace the previous codes produced by Sivantos and Widex. The code reflects
the organization's commitment to customers, business partners, employees and communities where WS Audiology does business.

The code covers:
*  Howto speak up
Conduct in our business
Conduct towards our customers and society
Working with business partners and suppliers
Fair treatment of our employees and workspace conduct
Financial integrity and protection of our assets

e & o o @

The Code of Conduct can be found at https://www.wsa.com/-/media/Files/WSA Code-of-Conduct.ashx

In addition, WS Audiology will become a signatory to the UN Global Compact, following on from the work already done by Sivantos. The UN
Global Compact (UNGC) provides a company with a value system and a principles-based approach to doing business.

This means meeting fundamental responsibilities in the areas of human rights, labor, environment and anti-corruption. The Ten Principles
of the United Nations Global Compact are derived from The Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the International Labor Organization's
Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work, the Rio Declaration on Environment and Development, and the United Nations
Convention Against Corruption.

As a global goals system, the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) provide a common language and compass for the challenges of the
21st century. We are committed to work towards them wherever possible.

WS Audiology is currently focusing on four SDGs:
SDG 3 — Good Health and Well-being

SDG 4 - Quality Education

SDG 7 - Affordable and Clean Energy

SDG 12 — Responsible Consumption and Production

Health and Safety, Environment and Climate

As part of our commitment to support the UN Sustainable Development Goals, WS Audiology is focused on reducing the company's impact
on the environment and climate by responsible production and consumption. We aim for environmental sustainability by contributing to the
UN Sustainable Development Goal 12.

As a medical instrument manufacturer, we place a great deal of importance on excellence in environmental protection, occupational health
management, and workplace safety within the business as well as in the product life cycle.

We are committed to:

«  Providing a safe and healthy working condition for our employees, contractors and visitors, and systematically eliminating hazards
and reducing risks.

+  Ensuring that our product life cycle helps protect the natural environment and contributes to a sustainable future.

. Fulfilling our EH&S compliance obligations in our processes, which are the cornerstone of our daily work.

s  Continuously improving our EH&S management system & performance to bring us closer toward the goal of zero accidents, zero
health impact and zero waste.

This policy is implemented through a comprehensive EH&S Management System based on international standards and overseen by gov-
ernance arrangements at all levels of the organization. EH&S must be embraced by everyone and clearly demonstrated through communi-
cation, consultation and participation of all stakeholders.

WS Audiology's manufacturing process has a low risk of impact on the environment and climate and reduces or avoids the risk of environ-
mental damage via the regular maintenance of production processes and environmental protection systems.

With regards to Health and Safety the risk is also considered low due to manufacturing process and use of products. The risk is mitigated
through implementation of the multi-site EH&A systems described below.

Following the merger, the smart lean program has been extended to the former Widex manufacturing centers.

However, there is some metal, electronic and plastic waste generated during the manufacturing process. Waste from operations is disposed
of in a legally compliant and sustainable manner with proper records and verifiable data. In 2018, Sivantos began a new program with the
goal of 100% recycling or reutilization of all materials. We aim to recycle all plastics while batteries undergo a recovery process including
the lithium component in the case of Li-ion batteries, as well as components from all other electronic waste. This is already done in some
sites and will be expanded to all in the coming years. We have a goal of setting a formal target during 2020.
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Former-Sivantos implemented a comprehensive multi-site EH&S (Environmental, Health and Safety, ISO 14001) and OHSAS 18001 (Oc-
cupational Health and Safety Assessment Series) management system at the three production sites at Singapore, Suzhou and Poznan.
They were awarded an 1SO14001 and OHSAS 18001 certification. This concept will be rolled out to all major manufacturing sites of WS
Audiology.

In November 2017, Sivantos Group started a comprehensive improvement program. Thanks to this “smart lean program”, our European and
Asian manufacturing centers go beyond the traditional manufacturing methods that were long common in the hearing aid industry.

Following the merger, the smart lean program has been extended to the former Widex manufacturing centers.

The above-mentioned activities have contributed to succeed in maintaining a high level of people and environmental protection throughout
the merger period.

Social engagement

The company takes part in a wide range of activities with global and local communities on its own behalf and in support of employees.

The company maintains strong partnerships with local non-profit organizations around the globe, most notably, the China Foundation for
Disabled Persons and the Akshaya Patra foundation in India.

From employees raising funds for multiple sclerosis, to a multi-year university sponsorship program in Singapore, it is a broad-scope en-
gagement that has been driven by the passion of our people. We are currently reviewing our existing policies and activities to see how we
can further engage and contribute.

The two companies behind WS Audiology have long-standing partnerships with the Danish Technical University in improving the basic
science behind hearing aids and the National University of Singapore in creating better-qualified audiologists.

For the financial year 2019-20, WS Audiology plans to continue its contributions to sustainability activities through monetary and in-kind
donations to local non-profit organizations, educational facilities, and relief associations.

Examples include:

Since 2011, Sivantos France supported Audition Solidarité, a humanitarian association which operates in three specific areas internationally:
o Hearing aids for disadvantaged adults and children in France and all over the world
. Recycling of hearing aids in a unique workshop in France
. Hearing loss prevention for musicians

Financial support is given to the association every year so they can continue their work in schools for the deaf and hard of hearing in
Morocco, Tunisia, Guinea, Vietnam, Madagascar, Cameroon and Burkina Faso.

On World Hearing Day, Sivantos China donated around 7,500 USD to the “Love Ears" concert put on by the China Symphony Orchestra.
Children with hearing loss also performed songs and poems to an audience of around 2,000 in celebration of the beauty of hearing. The
annual event is organized by the China Rehabilitation Research Center for Hearing and Speech Impairment.

The main risk in this area is considered bribery, please refer to the section below which describes action to prevent bribery.

For more information see
https:/iwww.wsa.com/-/media/Files/Sivantos CoP-Report 2019 for-ePaper.ashx

Anti-corruption and bribery
We are committed to working against corruption in all its forms, by always acting professionally, fairly and with integrity. We take a zero-
tolerance approach to corruption, including fraud and bribery.

Anti-corruption considerations are an integrated part of our business partner handling process, and we continue to safeguard that our part-
ners acknowledge and respect their responsibility when doing business with us.

The main risks related to our activities include employees’ and business partners’ violation of our anti-corruption commitment and the result-
ing potential legal and financial consequences.

Our main suppliers are located in Europe and North America, regions generally perceived as being low risk with regards to anti-corruption.
The risk of corruption in connection with our business is perceived to be higher in some of our markets, but we have established multiple
measures to ensure that anti-corruption is an integrated part of our business, such as vetting of all suppliers, and ad-hoc evaluations.

We ensure that we are not indirectly facilitating corrupt or unethical practices by allowing money or materials to get into the wrong hands.

In particular, we do not do business with third parties (such as consultants, agents, and intermediaries) if the circumstances indicate that all
or part of the money paid to them may be directly or indirectly passed on to a government official to influence official action or obtain an
improper advantage; or passed on fo a private commercial counterparty in consideration for an unfair advantage in a business transaction.

For that reason, we will evaluate the qualifications and reputation of these third parties and avoid working with third parties whose standards
are incompatible with our Code.

Like any business, we sometimes give and accept gifts, hospitality or entertainment. In every case, we must consider whether it is appropri-
ate. Before offering or accepting anything, employees must ensure that it complies with our internal policy or procedure, that it is normal in
a business relationship and is unlikely to influence the other person’s — or our own — decision making.

If the gift, hospitality or entertainment is linked to a sale, or can be perceived as excessive or as a bribe, we do not offer or accept such a
gift, hospitality or entertainment. We do not offer, promise or give anything of value to any public official, directly, or indirectly, with the
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intention of influencing them in their work or to obtain or retain business or a business advantage. We also do not make facilitation payments
or permit others to make them on our behalf.

Our internal guidelines and trainings set the basis for our system that is designed te prevent, detect, and respond to potential violations of
anti-corruption and antitrust regulations.

All employees at WS Audiology must read and become familiar with the Code, as its principles need to be a part of daily work. Both former
Sivantos and Widex employees have attended mandatory training sessions on their separate codes of conduct before the merger. Mandatory
training for the WS Audiclogy Code of Conduct will stari in February 2020.

We are committed to fostering an environment where our employees can ask questions and raise issues or concerns about business ethics
without fear of retaliation. If unethical behavior cor illegal conduct in the workplace is experienced or witnessed, we require our employees to
report it and seek guidance on such matters.

Empioyees and third parties can contact an external Ombudsman anonymously if they believe to have witnessed incorrect business practices
within the group.

We follow up on every reported violation with internal compliance investigations when justified by supporting evidence. Upon completion of
an investigation, we propose solutions for any identified issues and ensure they are carried out. We also respond to incidenis of employee
misconduct with appropriate and legat disciptinary action.

The Ombudsman investigates any reported matter and if there is any suspicion of violation, especially of criminal nature or in defiance of
our Code of Conduct, the reports will be forwarded to the group so that we can stari investigations immediately. The identity of the informant
wiil not be revealed.

All emails and reporting will be kept confidential to the extent permitted by law and will only be shared on a need-to-know basis with the
required person(s} who shall investigale andfor decide on the reported possible viclation.

We have a policy of “zero tolerance” for retaliation. Employees can report issues and concerns in good faith without fear of the consequences.

For the last calendar year, there has not been any substaniiated breaches of our code of conduct save for one case in retail US where the
employee has been terminated and was also under police investigations for a fraud case amounting to USD100K.

No reporis were made 1o the Ombudsman in the tast calendar year.

Labor rights

WS Audiology seeks to create a safe working environment that appeals to all empioyees, so we can attract, develop and retain well-qualified
and engaged employees,

In regard to labor rights the risk is considered low due to the organizationat setup of the Group and strong culture for having an open and
honest relationship with employees. The risk is mitigated through clear compliance with nationaf legistation, implementation of UN global
compact principles 3-6 and employee representatives in workers councils in sefected countries.

We work towards an open and honest relationship with employees. We respect their right to be informed, heard and to voice their concerns
in an open and transparent manner.

We act in compliance with national legislation in the countries in which we operate, and we foliow the UN Global Compact Principles 3-8,
=« Businesses should uphold the freedom of association and the effective recognition of the right to collective bargaining;
+  The elimination of all forms of forced and compulsery iabor
+  The effective abolition of child labar;
+ and the elimination of discrimination in respect of employment and occupation.

WS Audiology is commitied to regular Employee Engagement surveys, following on from the surveys undertaken in the former Sivantos and
Widex companies.

The first of these surveys from the Great Place To Work Institute® was completed in October. It surveyed all employees in the merged
company with a response rate of 87%. Employees were asked for their feedback on three key relationships that make a Great Place fo
Work®: Management, Employee and Job. These were measured on Credibility, Respect, Fairness, Pride and Camaraderie.

Couniry managers have been tasked with sharing the results for their companies and Six WS Audiology counfries atfained a Trust Index@
of more than 70% to be certified as a Great Place to Work.

Employes Representatives from fourteen countries met in December 2018 to begin negotiations for an agreement fowards a WS Audioicgy
European Works Council. Employee elected delegates from Italy, Germany, France, Hungary, Austria, Czech Republic, Norway, Estonia,
the Netherlands, Poland, UK, Sweden, Slovakia and Denmark, met as part of a Special Negotiation Bedy that will have the task of creating
a Works Council from the different European ceuntries in which WS Audiology has operations. The representalives are informed and con-
suited by central management on transnational issues of concern to the company's employees, Under European Union rules, the Special
Negotiation Body has now three years to reach an agreement with the WS Audiolegy management on the structure of the Works Council.

Human Rights
We believe that respecting human rights is fundamental to our way of business.

We recognize that we are responsible for the impact of our business activities on the pecple who work for or with us and are also responsible
for our impact on the people in communities where we operate. We act on this responsibility by using our influence to promote and protect
the human rights of all those we work with and alengside. We suppart the principles defined within the International Labor Qrganization Core
Conventions, the United Nations {UN) Global Compact and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights.
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Regarding human rights the risk is considered low due to the organizational setup of the Group and strong culture for having an open and
honest relationship with employees. The risk is mitigated through implementation of our Employee code of conduct as well as our CHSAS
certifications as described below.

We are committed to complying with applicable laws and regulations regarding working conditions, labor standards, modern siavery, hu-
man trafficking, discrimination and harassment.

We are committed to ensuring & safe and heatthy work environment

We are committed to providing a safe and healthy workplace for our customers, business partners, employees and other stakeholders
working within, or visiting, our facilities or premises.

We are committed to ensuring that alt of our employees are familiar with our Employee Code of Conduct and kept updated when ¢hanges
are integrated.

Respecting human rights is a core value of WS Audiology and is part of our Business Conduct Guidelines. We have a muitisite OHSAS
18001 certification for manufacturing sites and offices as part of our commitment to upholding a safe work environment.

As a medical device company, we understand that product safety can never be compromised as errors in our hearing aids or other devices
could tead to significant and potentially life-long damages.

To ensure that medical devices are safe in every aspect, the US Food and Drug Administration (FDA) regularly inspects manufacturers,
Sites in China, Benmark, Germany, the USA and Singapore all successfully passed the FDA audit inspection in 2018-19.

In Europe, WSA is one of the first hearing aid manufacturing companies audited successfully under the new Medical Device Regulations
{MDR), awaiting the new certificates by Q1/2020. The success behind is a muiti-site Quality Management Systems (QMS) following the ISO
13485 that allows global governance and local adaptaticns to ensure an effective but efficient quality throughout the whole WS Audiology
group.

Statutory report on the underrepresented gender

WS Audiology wishes to promote diversity at alt levels of the Group. Discrimination and harassment are not tolerated in any form. A series
of new policies, including the updated code of conduct, has been introduces to support this commitment, including an updated working
environment policy and an antiharassment policy. All employees will have the same opporiunities regardless of gender, age, race, ethnicity,
sex, religion, sexual orientation, etc. Personal privacy will be respected,; discrimination and verbal or psychological harassment will not be
tolerated.

. For the {otal employee population, the gender split is 56% women and 44% men. For employees with managerial responsibility the split is
72% men and 28% women.

The share of women in managerial positions is not at the desired levef across the Group, and there are still countries where better repre-
sentation of women is needed. The company is focused on ensuring that gender diversity is promoted. This is for example the case when
hiring for leadership positions where at least one female candidate must be found and when organizing teadership courses where female
representations is examined

The board of directors currenily consist of eight members. Af present there are no female beard members, but the target is that the share of
women should be two members by 2022. The target has not been reached in the reporting year, as the best qualified candidates for the
board members whe joined during the year were men. The board compaosition will be reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure the ambition
is met.
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Consolidated financial statements
Consolidated income statement
1 May 2018 -
30 September 1 May 2017 -
2019 30 April 2018
EURm Notes {17 months} (12 months)
Revenue 21 1,669.5 5¢9.2
Cost of goods scld 671.2) {158.0)
Gross profit G98.3 441.2
Research and development costs {84.0) (29.5)
Selling and general administration expenses (989.1}) (314.7)
Other operating income and costs, net (4.3} 3.1
Share of profit/ioss) in associates 5.6 0.1 {0.1)
COperating (loss)/profit {79.0} 10C.0
Interest income 4.4 52 7.3
Interest expenses 4.4 (127.0) {12.5)
Other financials, net 4.4 (97.8) (4.4)
{Loss)/profit before tax (268.6) 90.4
Taxon profitf{loss) 2.3 14.0 (20.0)
{Loss)profit for the year (284.6) 70.4
Attribute to:
Non-controlling interests 0.1 1.8
Shareholders of WS Audiclogy A5 {284.7) B88.6
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
1 May 2018 -
30 September 1 May 2017 -
2019 30 April 2018

EURm Notes {17 months) {12 months)
(l-oss)/profit for the year (284.6) 70.4
{fems that will not be reclassified to profif or loss
Actuarial gains 5.4 (9.6) -
Tax on items that will not subsequently be reclassified o the income statement 2.7 -
{fems that may be reciassified subsequently to profit or loss
Change in fair value gains of cash flow hedge {1.2) -
Tax on items that have baen or may subsequently be reclassified ‘o the income s{atement (2.3) 2.1
Foreign exchange adjustrments 106.1 (21.7)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (0.3} (19.6)
Total comprehensive income for the year (284.9) 50.8
Attributable to
Non-controlling interests 0.8 6.6
Shareholders of WS Audiclogy A/S (285.7) 50.2
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Consolidated balance sheet

30 September Opening IFRS
2019 30 April 2018  balance sheet

EURmM Notes 1 May 2017
Assets
Goodwill 3.1 3,492.9 159,92 156.1
QOther intangitle assets 3.1 2,1384 41.8 356
Property, plants and equipment 3.2 164.2 82.7 81.1
Investments in associates 55 7.4 6.5 5.8
Deferred tax assefs 2.3 731 28.2 34,5
Other non-current financial assats 3.4 122.3 4.3 53.8
Other non-current assets 3.5 4.7 - -
Totat non-current assets 6,003.0 363.4 3489
Inventories 3.6 116.8 55.0 48.6
Trade receivables 3.7 326.0 98.4 97.4
Current income iax receivables 4.4 1.0 -
Other current financial assets 3.4 49.6 37.5 28.3
Prapaymenis - 1.3 B
Other current assets 3.8 48.4 211 24.8
Cash and cash equivalents 142.7 36.9 452
Total current assets 587.9 251.2 244.3
Total assets 6,690.9 6148 591.2
Equity and Liabilities
Share capital 4.1 100.0 4.0 4.0
Other reserves 1,982.8 (18.4} -
(Accumulated losses)/Retained earnings (162.7) 325.8 257.2
Total equity attributable to the shareholders of WS Audioclogy A/S 1,930.1 311.4 2612
Non-controlling interests 52.3 6.8 7.0
Total equity 18824 318.2 268.2
Long-term debts 42,43 34728 0.3 .2
Pension chiigations 54 19.8 1.3 1.9
Provisions 3.10 28.3 8.7 9.4
Deferred tax lizbilities 23 4471 0.4 0.1
Other nan-current financial liabilities 3.8 113.8 10.4 9.2
Other non-current Eabilities 3.9 69.3 7.2 24.9
Total non-current liabilities 4,151.1 253 45,7
Shori-term debts 42,43 86.8 - 2.2
Trade payables 198.5 811 451
Debt to refated parties - - 12.4
Current income tax liabilities 28,5 8.4 14.3
Provisions - current 3.10 479 8.1 10.3
Other current financial Eabilities 3.8 376 130.1 129.7
Other current liabilities 3.9 158.1 70.4 63,3
Total current liabilities 557.4 2581 2773

Total equity and liabilities 6,890.9 5148 591.2
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Consolidated statement of cash flow
1 May 2018 - 30
September 1 May 2017 -
2019 30 April 2018

EURmM Notes {17 months) (12 months}
Operating activiies
(Loss)iprofit for the year (284.6) 704
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 33 183.1 19.8
Amortisation of fransaction costs 10.0 -
Income tax expense, net 23 {(14.0) 200
Interast expense, net 115.8 9.7
toss on sales and disposals ofintangibles, plant and equipment 1.9 -
Share of {profit)/loss in associates ©.1) 0.1
Other non-cash adjustments 57 394 0.1
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 51.3 119.8
Change in inventories 60.6 (7.8)
Change in trade and other receivables {7.8) (4.8)
Change in other current assets 233 0.9
Change in trade payables 54 18.0
Change in other current liabilities {17.3) {10.3)
Change in other assets and other liabilities 63.8 -
Change in provisions 7.8 (3.5)
Cash flow from operating activities before financial items and tax 1871 1128
Financial income received 1.4 1.7
Inceme {axes paid, net {20.9) (20.0)
Cash flow from operating activities 167.6 94.3
Investing activifies
Acquisition of companiesfoperations, net of cash acquired (32.1) (18.3)
Investments in intangible assels and property, plantand quipment (104.5) (33.4)
Investments in other assets (0.9 (11.0)
Proceeds from disposal ofintangible assets and property, plant and
equipment 6.9 4.3
Proceeds from dispesalrepayment of other assets - 1.4
Cash flow used in investing activities (130.6) (57.3)
Cash flow from operating and investing activities 37.0 37.0
Financing activities
Transaction costs paid for issuance of long-term debi (12.1} -
Proceeds from long-term and short-term debt 215.9 -
Repayment of long-term and shori-term debt (27.4) (18.8)
Dividend paid to non controlling interest - (0.8}
Financial expenses paid {104.4) (26.8)
Dividend paid to shareholders {0.3) -
Change in other short-term debt and other financing activities (3.7} 0.7
Cash flow from/{used in) financing activities 68.0 (45.3)
Net cash flow 105.0 {8.3)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 36.9 451
Adjustment foreign currency, cash and cash equivalents 0.8 0.1
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 142.7 36.9
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Foreign Equity of
Share . Hedging Retained shareholdersin  Non-controlling .

EUI o

Rm capital apital Reserve  Other reserve -exchange reserve earnings WS Audiology interests Total equity

adjustments
AIS

Eguity at 30 April 2017 4.0 - - - - 249.3 253.3 7.0 280.3
Impact of transition to IFRS - - - - - 7.9 7.9 - 7.9
Equity at 1 May 2017 4.0 - - - - 257.2 261.2 7.0 268.2
Profit for the period - - - - - 6B.6 68.6 1.8 70.4
Foreigh exchange adjustment, eic. - - - (20.5) - - (20.5) (1.2} (21.7)
Tax relating to other comprehensive income - - - 2.1 - - 2.1 - 21
Total comprehensive income for the year . - - (18.4) - 68.6 50,2 06 50.8
Dividends paid - - - - - {0.8} (0.8)
Equity at 30 April 2018 40 - - {18.4) - 325.8 311.4 6.8 318.2
Loss for the pericd - - - - - (284.7) (284.7) 0.9 (284.6)
Actuarial losses B - - - B (9.8) (9.8) - (9.6)
Adjustment of cash flow hedges - - - - +(1.2) - (1.2) - (1.2}
Foreign exchange adjustment, etc. B - - 9.4 - - 9.4 a7 10.1
Tax retating to other comprehensive income - - - 2.4} 041 27 0.4 - 0.4
Total comprehensive income for the year “ - - 7.00 (1.1} {291.6) {285.7) 0.8 {284.9)
Business combination as at 28 February 2019 4.0 - {1,840,2} - - - (1,844.2) 48,1 {1,798.1)
Capital contribution in kind from the parent entity 100.0 3,835.5 - - - - 3,9358.5 - 3,935.5
Capital conteibution in kind - - - - - 413 41.1 - 41.1
Other transactions with non-controlling interest - - - - - - - {1.4) (1.4)
Cash dividend paid - - - - - {0.3) (0.3} - (0.3)
Non cash dividend paid - - - - - {227.7) {227.7) - (227.7)
Equity at 30 September 2013 100.0 3,835.5 (1,840.2) {11.4) {1.1) {152.7) 1,930.1 52.3 1,982.4

Description of reserves:

- Capital reserve relates to deemed contribution by the shareholders in relation to the reverse acquisition.

- Other reserve comprises:

= the difference between the consideration paid, in the form of the acquiring the shares of the Sivantos Groups (ref. note 1) and the net equity of the subsidiaries acquired.
= the elimination of the investment in the Widex Group (ref Note 1)
= the reserve under the scope of IFRS 2 (Note 5.3)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1.1
1.2
1.3
1.4

2.1
2.2
2.3

3.1
3.2
33
34
35
3.6
3.7
3.8
3.9
3.10

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4

51
5.2
53
5.4
5.5
5.6
5.7
5.8
589
5.10
511
5.12

Basis for preperation

First-time adoption of IFRS

General accounting policies

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Adopticn of new and amended IFRS

Results of the year
Revenue
Staff cosls

Tax on profit/(foss)

Operating assets and liabilities
Intangible asseis

Properiy, plant and equipment

Depreciation, amortization and impairment
Cther non-current and current financial assets
Other non-current and current assets
Inventories

Trade receivables and coniract assels

Other non-current and current financiat liabilities
Other non-current and current liabilities

Provisions

Capital structure and financing items
Qutstanding shares

Financial risks and financial instruments
Liabilities from financing activities

Financial income and expenses

Other disclosures

Business comhinations

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
Management Participation Program Liahility
Pension obligations

Contingent assets and liabijities

Associates

Qther non-cash adjustments

Lease cbtigations

Fees to auditors appoinied at the annuat general meeting
Related parties

Companies in the WS Audictogy Group

Significant evenis after the balance sheet date
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5.13 Approval of {he consolidated financial statements
1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial staiements for the Group and separate parent financial statements for WS Audiology A/S have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union (EU) and further requirements in the Danish Financial Statements Act.

The consolidated financial statements and separate parent financial statements are presented in Euros (EUR} which is the functional cur-
rency of WS Audiotogy A/S. All values are rounded %o the nearest million (EUR) with one decimal, except where indicated ctherwise.

The Group’s general accounting policies are described in 1.2 Significant general accounting policies below. in addition fo this, specific
accounting policies are described in each of the individual notes to the consolidated financial statements. The accounting policies set our
below and in each note have been used consistently in respect of the financial year and the comparative figures, except as explained in note
1.1 First-fime adoption of IFRS.

Background

On 28 February 2019, but prior {o the incerperation of WS Audiology A/S, the shares in the Widex Group were held by T&W Medical A/S
(previously named Widex Holding A/S) and the shares in the Sivanios Group were held by Auris Luxembourg | S.A., North Harbour Vil
S.a.r.l. and North Harbour VI S.4.r.l.

WS Audiclogy A/S was established 28 February 2019 to effectuate the merger of the Sivantos Group and the Widex Group, as explained in
the Management Commentary. Therefore, the financial statements for 2018/19 for WS Audiology A/S are the first financial statements for
the company and for the combined group.

From an accounting point of view the Widex Group has been regarded as the accounting acquirer, and the Sivantos Group is regarded as
the accounting acquiree. Accordingly, the consclidated financial statements therefore represent a continuation of the financial position,
performance and cash flows of the Widex Group and a purchase price allccation has been prepared for the Sivantes Group with an acqui-
sition date of 28 February 2019 as outlined in note 5.1, on business combinations. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on the following basis:

a) the assets and ilabifities of the Widex Group are recognised and measured in the consolidated statement of financial pasition of the
Group at their pre-acquisition carrying amounts;

b} the assets and liabilities of the Sivantos Group are recognised and measured in the consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group at their acquisition-date fair values;

c) theretained earnings and other equity balances recognised in the consolidated financial statements are the retained earnings and other
equity balances of the Widex Group immediately before the Reverse Acquisition;

d} the amount recognised as issued equity interests in the consolidated financial statements is determined by adjusting the issued equity
of Widex Group immediately before the Reverse Acquisition to the fair value of the consideration effectively transferred at the acquisition
date,

e} To align the accounting periods in the combined group, Widex Group has changed ifs accounting period end from 30 April to 30
September, such that the accounting period will be from 1 October to 30 September. Therefore, the consolidated financial staternents
for 2018/19, which is the year in which the accounting period is changed, cover 17 months from 1 May 2018 to 30 September 2019,
whereas the comparative figures cover 12 months from 1 May 2017 fo 30 Aprii 2018. These comparative figures are presented accord-
ing to the IFRS framework {refer to Note 1.1}

fy  As a resulf of the merger, the accounting estimates have been afigned within the Group and there was no significant financial impact
from the alignment of these estimates.

WS Audiology is a holding entity and dees not have any activity, assets or liabifities other than the ownership interests in the Group enti-
ties. After the merger, the WS Audialogy Group have significant activities in EUR and have raised significant debt in EUR. Therefore, the
functional currency of WS Audictogy A/S and the presentation currency of the WS Audiology Group is determined to be EUR.

As explained above, these consolidated financial statements are a continuation of the consolidated financial statements for Widex A/S for
2017/18 which were presented in DKK. All amounts previously reported in DKX have been translated to EUR in accordance with the require-
ments of IAS 21 The Effects of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rafes.

Establishment of the Group

On 28 February 2019, the Group was established in the following two steps:

1. T&W Medical A/S forms WS Audiolegy A/S by a contribution in kind of 100% of the shares in Widex A/S al a fair value agreed
between independent parties of EUR 1,849.7 miflion. WS Audiclogy A/S then issued shares at a fair value of EUR 1,849.7 million,
nominally EUR 47 million {47 million shares of nominally EUR 1 each), at a subscription price per share of approx. EUR 39.355
to T&W Medical A/S as consideration for the shares in Widex A/S.

2. Awuris Luxembourg 1 8.A., North Harbour VII S.4.1.l. and North Marbour VIl 8.4.r1. contribute their 100% of the shares in North
Harbour Lux TopCo S.a.r.l. at fair value agreed between independent parties of EUR 2,085.8 million. WS Audiology A/S then
issued shares at a fair value of EUR 2,085.8 million, neminally EUR 53 miltion (52 million shares of nominally EUR 1 each), ata
subscription price per share of approx. EUR 38.355 to Auris Luxembourg | S.A., North Harbour VII S.a.r.L. and North Harbour VI
S.a.r.l. as consideration for the shares in North Harbour Lux TopCo S.4r.),
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1.1 First-time adoption of IFRS

As explained above these first consolidated financiat statements of WS Audiology A/S are a continuation of the consolidated financial statements of Widex A/S Group, which have historically been
prepared in accordance with the Danish Financial Statements Act (‘DFSA”). Beginning from 2018/19, the consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS, and the Group has
applied IFRS 1 First-time adoption of IFRS with 1 May 2017 as the date of transition to IFRS. The Group has also applied the exemption under IFRS 1 Para E2 (a); IFRS 9 has been adopted on 1 May
2018, with the comparative information in compliance with the requirements of DK GAAP in place of the requirements IFRS 9 and IFRS 7.

The financial statements for all periads presented, including the opening IFRS statement of financial position have been prepared in accordance with all IFRS as adopted by EU effective for accounting
periods ending 30 September 2019 except when IFRS 1 require or allow prospective implementation as explained below.

1 May 2047 30 April 2018

Profit for the
EURmM Assets Liabilities Equity year 2047118 Assets Liabilities Equity
According to previous GAAP (Danish Financial Statements Act) 581.4 3211 260.3 51.2 5856 294.0 291.6
Goodwill - - - 20.7 20.6 - 20.6
Other intangible assets . - - - - 0.2 - 0.2
Deferred tax assets 5.9 - 59 - - - -
Other non-current financial assets (1.7) - (1.7) - 0.5 - 0.5
Other current financial assets 56 - 56 {0.9) 7.7 - 7.7
Other financial liabilities - 1.8 1.8} (0.6) ~ 2.3 (2.3)
Other current liabilities - 0.1 (0.1) - - 0.1 {0.1)
According to IFRS 591.2 323.0 268.2° 70.4 614.6 296.4 318.2
Other comprehensive income
Exchange rate adjustiments investments in foreign operations 21.7)
Tax on other comprehensive income 2.1
Total comprehensive income 50.8

IFRS adjustments related to the statement of comprehensive income for the period 1 May 2017 to 30 April 2018:

1)}  Widex recognizes a fair value adjustment on initial recognition of interest free customer loans within “Other financial expenses” under DFSA. Under IFRS, the fair valize adjustiment on initial
recognition is considered to represent consideration payable to the customer and hence a reduction of fransaction prices for goods to be delivered in the future. EUR 0.9 million represents the

reduction in sales prices for goods delivered during the year.

2)  Under DFSA, Widex amortizes goodwill over 10 years. Under [FRS, goodwill is not amortized but tested for impairment at least annually. Goedwill amortization of EUR 21.¢ million has been

reversed, and “Selling and general administration expenses” was decreased with the same amount.

3) Under DFSA, Widex recognizes operating lease expenses at the amounts paid for each period. Under IFRS, operating lease expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis. "Selling and

general administration expenses” was increased by EUR 1.2 million,

4)  Under DFSA, Widex recognizes adjustments to earn-outs in business combinations as an adjustment {o consideration paid for the business combinations. Under IFRS, adjustments to earn-outs
in business combinations are recognized in profit or loss. EUR 0.6 million in reduction of earn-out ltabilities during the year was recognized in “Other operating income”.
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5)

6)

8)

9)

10)

Under DFSA, Widex recognizes transactions costs refated to business combinations as pan of the consideration paid for the business combinations. Under IFRS, transaction costs related to
business combinations are recognized in profit or loss. EUR 0.2 million in costs was recognized in “Other operating expenses” related fo transaction costs related to business combinations
during the year.

Under DFSA, Widex recognizes amortization of goodwill recognized as part of the investments in associates. Under (FRS, goodwill related to investments in associates is not amortized. EUR
0.2 million related to amortization of goodwill as part of the investments in assoclates during the year was reversed.

Under DFSA, Widex has based the amortization of fair value adjustments related ta interest free customer loans on an interest rate determined for the entire portfolio of customer loans in the
Widex Group. Under IFRS, the amortization is based on market interest rates in each jurisdiction. EUR 0.3 million in additional interest income was recognized under IFRS.

Under DFSA, Widex recognizes a fair value adjustment on initial recognition of interest free customer Joans within “Other financial expenses” under DFSA. Under IFRS, the fair vaiue adjustment
on initial recognition is considered to represent consideration payable to the customer and hence a reduction of fransaction prices for goods to be delivered in the future. EUR 4.6 million related
{o fair value adjustments on initial recognition of new customer loans issued during the year was reversed.

EUR 5.2 million was recognized as a net increase in deferred tax (additional {ax cost} for the period from the tax effects of reversals of goodwill amortizations, straight lining of operating lease
costs and actuarial gains or losses related to defined benefit plans.

Under DFSA, Widex recognizes exchange rate adjustments related to investements in foreign operations directly. Under IFRS, exchange rate adjustments related to investments in foreign
operations are recognized in other comprehensive income. Foreign exchange rate adjustments previously recognized directly in equity, net of effects of adjustmenits from IFRS adjustments
amount to EUR 19.6 million.

IFRS adjustments related to the statement of financial position at 1 May 2017 and 1 May 2018:

11
12)
13)
14)
15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

Under DFSA, Widex amortizes goodwill over 10 years. Under IFRS, goodwill is not amoriized but tested for impairment at least annually. Widex has not adjusted the accounting for business
combinations prior to 1 May 2017, Under IFRS, goodwill amortization from 1 May 2017 until 30 April 2018 amounting to EUR 21.0 million was reversed.

Business combinations entered into after 1 May 2017 was reassessed under IFRS. Compared to the accounting for business combinations under DFSA, removal of fransaction costs as par
of considerations for the business combinations, adjustments to identified intangible assets refated to customer lists, adjustments to measurement of earn-outs resulted in a net increase of
goodwill of EUR 0.3 million at 30 April 2018.

The effects of exchange rate adjustments related to goodwill from the abovementioned IFRS adjustments related to goodwill decreased "Goodwill” by EUR 0.7 million at 30 Aprit 2018,
Business combinations after 1 May 2017 was reassessed under IFRS. Compared to the accounting for business combination under DFSA, adjustments to identify intangible assets related to
customer lists resulted in a net increase of "Other intangible assets” related to customer lists of EUR 0.2 million af 30 April 2018,

Under DFESA, Widex recognizes amortization of goodwill recognized as part of the investments in associates. Under IFRS, goodwill related to invesiments in associates is not amortized. EUR
0.2 million related to amortization of goodwill recognized as part of the invesiments in associates from 1 May 2017 to 30 April 2018 was reversed.

The accumulated tax effects of IFRS adjustments amounis to an increase in deferred tax asset of EUR 5.9 million at 1 May 2017. The net IFRS adjustments to deferred tax asset at 30 April
2018 is nill. The accumulated net tax effects relate to reversal of amorfization of goodwill and other adjustments related to business combinations, straight lining of operating lease expenses
and consequential adjustments 1o foreign exchange rate adjustments..

Under DFSA, Widex recognizes a fair value adjustment on initial recognition of interest free customer leans in profit or loss within "Other financial expenses”. Under IFRS, the fair value adjustment
on initial recognition is considered to represent consideration payable to the customer and hence a reduction of transaction prices for goods to be delivered in the future. Under IFRS, the asset
related to accrual of fair value adjustments ai 1 May 2017 amounts to EUR 5.6 million and EUR 7.7 miilion at 30 April 2018 and is presented as “Other current financial assets”.

Under DFSA, Widex has measured the fair value of customer loans at inifial recognition and subsequent amoriization of fair value adjustments related to interest free customer loans on an
interest rate determined for the entire portfolio of customer loans in the Widex Group. Under IFRS, the measurement and amortization is based on market interest rates in each jurisdiction.
Under IFRS, the carrying amount of customer foans is reduced by EUR 1.7 million at 1 May 2017 and increased by EUR 0.3 million at 30 April 2018.

Under DESA, Widex recognizes operating lease expenses at the amounts paid for each period. Under IFRS, operating lease expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis. The non-current
portion of the related accrued operating lease liability amounts to EUR 1.7 million at 1 May 2017 and EUR 2.9 million at 30 April 2018. The current portion of the related accrued operating lease
liability amounts to EUR 0.1 at 1 May 2017 and EUR 0.1 at 30 April 2018
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1.2 General accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of WS Audiology A/S (the parent company) and subsidiaries, which
are entities controlled by WS Audiology A/S, prepared in accordance with Group policies. The Group contrels an entity when it is exposed
{0, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are listed in note 5.11.

The consolidated financiat statements are prepared by combining items of a uniform nature and subsequently eliminating intercompany
fransactions, internal shareholdings and balances and unrealized intercompany gains or losses. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the censolidated financial statements from the date en which contrel commences and untif the date on which contrel ceases,

The accounting items of subsidiaries are recognised 100% in the consolidated financial statements. Non-controlling interest's share of sub-
sidiaries’ profit or loss for the year and of equily are included in the Group's profit or loss and equity, but are disclosed separately.

Acquisitions or dispasals on non-conirolling interests in subsidiaries, which does not resuilt in obtaining or losing control of such subsidiaries,
are treated as an equity transaction in the consolidated financial statements, and any difference between the consideration and the carrying
amount of the nen-controlling interest is allocated to the Parent’'s share of the equity.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and #iabifities of the subsidiary, as well as any related non-
controlling interests and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is
lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profi§ or loss.

Translation of foreign currency

A functional currency is determined for each or the reporting entities in the Group. The functional currency is the primary currency used for
the reporting entity’s operations. Transactions denominated in other that the functional currency are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rates at the fransaction date. Foreign exchange differences between the exchange rate at the transaction date and at the
date of payment are recognised in other financials, net.

Monetary assets and #iabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the
reporiing date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a fareign currency are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based con historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the transaction date.

Foreign exchange differences are generally recognised in other financials, net in the income statement. However, the following foreign
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income (“QCI™):

«  Qualifying cash flow hedges to the exient that the hedges are effective
+ Hedges of net investment in foreign operations to the extent that the hedges are effective
s  Foreign exchange adjustment of balances with foreign entities that are considered part of the net investment in the entity

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair vaiue adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated into EUR,
at the exchange rates at the reposting date. The income statements and statements of cash flows of foreign operations are translated into
EUR at average exchange rates for the period, unless such average exchange rates are unrepresentative of the exchange rates prevailing
at the transaction dates, in which case the transaction date exchange rates are applied.

Foreign exchange differences arising on translation of the opening batance of equity of foreign entities at the exchange rate at the reporting
date and on transiation of the income statement from the average exchange rate to the exchange rate at the reporting date are recognised
on other comprehensive income and afiributed to a separate translation reserve in eguity, except to the extent that the translation difference
is allocated to non-controlling interests.

On complete or partial disposal of 4 foreign entity such that control, significant influence or joint controf is lost, or on repayment of balances
that constitute part of the net investment in the foreign entity, the share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that foreign enfity is recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or less on disposal,
When the Group disposes of part of its inferest in a subsidiary but retains control, the relevant portion of the cumulative amount is reattributed
to non-controlling interest. On partial disposal of an associate or joint venture while retaining significant influence or joint confrol, the relevant
portion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to the income statement.

Statement of cash flows

The cash flow statement shows cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities as well as cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning and the end of the financial year.

Cash flows from operating activities are presented using the indirect method and calculated as the profiti{loss) for the period adjusted for
non-cash operating lems, changes in working capital and income taxes paid.

Cash flows from investing activities comprise payments in connection with acquisition and divestment of enterprises, activities and fixed
asset invesiments as well as purchase, development, improvement and sale, etc. of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment.
Cash flow from acquired enterprises is recognised in the cash flow statement from the acquisition date. Cash flow from disposed of enter-
prises is recognised up until {he disposal date.
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Cash flows from financing activities comprise changes in the size or composition of the contributed capital and related costs as well as the
raising of foans, repayment of interest-bearing debt (principal and interest), acquisition and disposal of treasury shares and payment of
dividends to shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and shori-term securities with an insignificant price risk,

Cash flows cannot be derived directly from the statement of financial position and income statement.
Applying materiality

The consolidated financial statements are a result of processing large numbers of transactions and aggregating those transactions into
classes according to their nature or function. The transactions are presented in classes of similar items in the consolidated financial state-
ments. l{ a line item is not individually material, it is aggregated with other items of a similar nature in the consolidated financiat statements
or in the notes.

There are substantial disclosure requirements throughout IFRS. Management provides specific disclosures required by IFRS unless the
information is not applicable or considered immaterial to the economic decision-making of the users of these financial statements.

1.3 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

In preparation of the consolidated financial statements, Management makes various accounting estimates and judgements that form the
basis of presentation, recognition and measurement of the Group's assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The key accounting estimates
identified are those that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within the
next financial year.

The application of the Group's accouniing policies may require Management to make judgements that can have a significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements. Management judgement is required in particular when assessing the substance
of fransactions that have a complicated structure or legal form.

The accounting estimates and judgements made are based on historical experience and other factors that Management assesses fo be
reliable, but that, by nature, are associated with uncertainty and unpredictability and may therefore prove incomplete or incorrect.

Specific accounting estimates and judgemenis are described in each of the following individual notes to the consolidated financial state-
ments:

Significant estimate/judgement Section

Revenue recognition for muitiple elemenis contracts 2.1 Revenue

Measurement of deferred tax assets and unceriain tax positions 2.3 Tax on profit/(logs)

Recogniticn and measurement of devetopment projects 3.1. Intangible assets

Impairment testing, useful lives and residual values 3.3.Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Measurement of provisions 3.18 Provisions

Loans to customers — Initial recagnition at fair value and allowange 3.4 Other current and non-current financial assets
for expected credit losses

Recognition and measurement of acquired assets and liabilities in 5.1 Business combinations

business combinations

Measurement of defined benefit pians 5.4 Pension obligations

1.4 Adoption of new and amended IFRS

New or amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted

JASR has issued new or amended accounting standards and inierpretations that have not yet become effective and have conseguently not
been implemented in the consclidated financial statements for 2018/19. WS Audiclogy A/S expects {0 adopt the accounting standards and
interpretaiions when they become effective. Apart from the implementation of IFRS 16 Leases, the implementation of new or amended
accounting standards and interprefations is not expected to have any significant impact on financials or the Group's accounting poficies as
they caover arears that are either not material or relevant for the Group.

IFRS 18 Leases, issued in January 2016, replaces IAS 17 Leases and related interpretations, and will significantly change the accounting
treatment of leases that are currently {reated as operating leases. IFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees
to recognise all [eases in the balance sheet as a lease liability and a right-of-use asset unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the
underlying asset has a low value. In the income staterment, the lease cost is replaced by depreciation of the right-of-use asset and an interest
expense for the lease liability.

The standard will be impfemented on 1 Gctober 2019 using the modified retrospective approach, where the right-of-use asset on transition
are measured at an amount equal to the lease liability at the date of initially applying the standard without restating comparative figures. In
addition, the Group plans fo apply the practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial
application.
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The Group has reviewed its leasing arrangements, which mainly comprise leases of properties and cars. The identified right-of use assets
are expected to increase the Group's non-current assets and interest-bearing debt by approximately EUR 137.4 million and EUR 136.2
million respectively. The effects are based on current lease agreements and are estimales subject to uncertainties. Possible future changes
in activities and lease terms are not taken into account.

The cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 will be presented as an adjustment to opening retained earnings under equity.
Apart frem the implementation of IFRS 16,0ther published changes to IFRS Standards, including IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income Tax

Treatmenis, are not expected to have any significant impact on the financials or the Group’s accounting policies, as they cover areas that
are not material and/or relevant for the Group

2 Results of the year

2.1 Revenue

EURmM

1 May 2018 - 30
September 2019
{17 months}

1 May 2017 - 30
April 2018
{12 months)

Reventue by geographic region:

EMEALA 580.9 231.2
North-America 7427 2440
Asia-Pacific 335.9 124.0
Total 1,669.5 599.2
Herecf US 620.8 177.4
Hereof Germany 165.3 43.1
Hereof Other 853.4 378.7
Total 1,669.5 599.2

Revenue is predeminantly recognized at a point in time, and revenue recegnized over time is not significant. Revenues are attribufed to
countries on the basis of the custorner's location. The Region "EMEA-LA”" consists of Europe, the Middle East, Africa and Latin-America.
The Region “North-America” includes the United States and Canada, The Region “Asia-Pacific” consisis of Asia, Australia and the Pacific
region.

Consolidated revenue mainly derives from sales of goods and is broken down by the selling entity. No individual customer accounts for 10%
ar more of the {otal revenue. The Group considers its operations to constitue a single operating segment.

Contract liabilities

The WS Audiology A/S Group has recognised the following fabiiities refated {o cantracts with customers:

1May2018-30 1 May 2017 -30

September 2019 April 2018
EURmM {17 months} {12 months)
Customer prepayments 121 041
Deferred revenue 19.7 1.5
Volume discounts 278 -
Right of returns 246 3.7
Contract liabilities with customers 84.0 5.3
Changes In contract Habilities:
Revenue recognised that was included in the confract liahility balance 3.7 -

The contract liabilities has increased significantly from the prior year mainly due to the merger as explained in Note 1.

Accounting policies

Revenue from sale of products is recognised when the Group has transferred control of products sold to the buyer and it is prebable that the
Group will collect the consideration to which it is entilfed for transferring the products. Control of the products is transferred at a point in time,
typically on delivery.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of discounts, VAT and other duties.

Contracts with customers sometimes include multiple promises that constitute separate performance obligations, and o which & portion of
the transaction price needs to be allocated. The total transaction price in the coniract is allocated to separate performance obligation based
on the relative stand-alone selting prices of each such performance obligation. Each separate performance obligation is recognised when
control is fransferred te the customer.

When products are sold with a right of return, a refund itability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue is recognised for those products
expected to be returned. In such cases, the expected returns are estimated based on an analysis of historical experience adjusted for
anykriown factors impacting expectations for future return rates To the extent that the Group will be able to recover the cost of returned
products, when the customers exercise their right to return, a separate right to returned products asset and a reduction in cost of sales is
recognised.

Discounts, rebates and sales incentives to customers

The Group pays various discounts, rebates and sales incentives to customers including trade discounts and volume rebates. Furthermore,
custemer discounts include the difference between the present value and the nominal amount of ioans to customers at below markef interest
rates, cf. section 3.4 Other non-current and current finanicial assets.

Discounts, rebates and sales incentives to custemers are deducted from revenue and are measured using either the expected value method
or ihe most likely amount method depending on which method better predicis the amount of consideration to which the Group will be entitled
net of discounts, rebates and sales incentives.

The Group offers customers the option to separately purchase extended warranty for inventories sold. The extended warranty is a distinct
service to the customer. The Group recognised all warranty-related costs as a provision for warranty at the time of the sales which were
previously accounted for under 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Confingent Assets as deferred revenue. Under IFRS 15, the
Group accounts for a service-lype warranty as a separate performance obligation 1o which the Group allocates a portion of the transaction
price when the warranty is bundled together with the sale of inventories. The portion of the {ransaction price allocated to the service-type
warranty is initiatly recarded as a contract liability and recognised as revenue cn a straight-fine basis over the period the warranty services
are provided. Revenue is recognised when the customer receives the warranty coverage and loss and damage as part of the purchase of
the hearing aid.

The standard warranty period for hearing aids varies across territories, typically between 12 and 36 months. The extended warranty covers
periods beyend the standard warranty period or standard warranty terms, Payment terms vary significantly across territories.

Significant judgements and accounting estimates

Significant judgements are required in identifying separate performance obligations in contracts with customers, and allocation of the total
consideration under the contract to each identified performance obligation. Separate perfermance obiigations may include e.g. free or dis-
counted supply of consumables for hearing aids, training of staff, leases of equipment, marketing contribution, extended warranties etc.

Estimates of the number of returns of preducts under customers right of return are based on the right of return policies and practices,
accumulated historical experience, sales trends and the timing of returns from the original transaction date when applicable. Where new
products are sold or products are sold to new markets, for which sufficient hisioricat experience does not exist, refund liability and revenue
to be recognised are based on estimated demand and acceptance rate for well-established products with similar market characteristics. If
such similar product or market characteristics do not exist, recognition of revenue is postponed until there is evidence of consumption of the
products by the customer, or when the right of refum has expired.

Estimates of discounts, rebailes and sales incentives are estimated and accrued when the related revenue is recegnised. To make such
estimates require use of judgement, as all conditions are not known at the time of the sale, e.g. the number of unils sold to a given customer
or the expected utilization of loyally programmes. Liabilities in respect of sales discounts, rebates and toyalty programmes are adjusted, as
the Group gain better informaticn on the fikefihood that they will be realized and the value at which they are expected to be realized.

The accrual against revenue of discounts from issue of customer loans at off-market terms (cf. Section 3.4 Other non-current and current
financial assets) is based on the customers totally committed purchases of products throughout the term of the customer loan, and is rec-
ognised as a discount for each product sold.
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2.2 Staff costs

1 May 2018 - 30

1 May 2017 - 30

September 201$ April 2618
EURm (17 months) {12 months)
Wages, salaries and remuneration 5109 184.3
Statutory social welfare confributions and expenses for opfional support payments 62.9 247
Expenses relating to pension plans and long term employee benefis 2989 12.1
Total 603.7 221.1
Average number of full-time employees 10,899 4,175

For information regarding remuneration of the Board of Directors, Executive Board and other Key Management Personnel, please refer to

note 5.2 Remuneration of Key Management personnel,

Accounting policies

Wages, salaries, social security contributions, annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are recognised in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group. Where the Group provides long-term employee benefits, the
costs are accrued to match the rendering of the services by the employees concerned.

2.3 Tax on profit/(loss)

income tax benefit/{expense) consists of the following:

1 May 2018 - 30

1 May 2017 - 30

September 2019 April 2018

EURmM {17 months) {12 months)
Tax on profit{loss)

Current tax for the year (23.9) (15.2)
Deferred tax for the year 350 {(5.6)
Effect of change in income taxrates 1.9 -
Withholding tax (0.5) -
Adjustment to current fax with respect {o prior years 38 (0.2)
Adjustment to deferred tax with respect to prior years (24 1.0
Tofal 14.0 {20.0)

Income tax expense differs from the amounts computed by applying the statutory Denmark income tax rate of 22% (2018: 22%) as follows:

1 May 2018 - 30 1 May 2017 - 30

September 2019 April 2018

Reconciliation of effective tax rate {17 months) {12 months}
Expected income tax (expense)/henefit 85.7 (19.9)
Non-deductibie expenses (34.4) 0.9
Non-taxable income 6.5 -
Adjustment of tax with respect to prier years 1.5 08
Reassessment of deferred tax assets on taxlosses and temporary differences {14.8} -
ffect of change in income faxrates 1.9 (1.8}
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions (13.1) -
Taxincentives 34 -
Withholding tax (0.5) -
Other, net {1.9) 1.6

Total 14.0 {20.0})
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Tax relating fo other comprehensive income
Actuarial gains 2.7) -
Adjustment of cash flow hedges - -
Foreign exchange adjustments, efc. 2.3 (2.1}
Total {0.4} (2.1)

Deferred Tax

1 May 2018 - 30

1 May 2017 - 30

September 2013 April 2018
EURmM {17 months) {12 months)
Deferred tax, net 1 May 278 34.4
Foreign currency translation adjusiments 0.3 {4.1)
Changes In deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 35.0 {5.6)
Additions refating to acquisitiens (437.0) -
Adjustment of deferred tax, prior years (2.4) 1.0
Impact of changes in corporate taxrates 1.9 -
Deferred tax relating to changes in equity, net 0.4 2.1
Deferred tax, net {374.0) 27.8
Deferred tax recognised in the balance sheet
Deferred taxassels 73.1 282
Deferred {axliabiliies {447.1) (0.4)
Deferred tax, net {374.0} 27.8
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Breakdown of the Group’s temporary differences and Changes
Tax effect of
Tax effect of Tax effect of Foreign Recognised Temporary
Temporary Effect of Temporary currency Recognised in other com- differences at
differences at 30 Implementation of  differences at1 transiation in profit for prehensive 30 September
EURm April 2018 IFRS May 2018 adjustments Acquisitions the year ingome 2019
Financial assets 0.7 - (0.7) - 6.3 1.6 - 17.2
Intangible assets 0.3) 0.7) (1.0} (1.3} (467.4) 12,2 - (457.5)
Property, plant and equipment (1.4) - (1.4 {C.1} {7.2) 4.1 - {4.6)
Inventories 6.6 - 2.6 - 4.0 79 - 20.5
Receivables 22 - 2.2 0.3 6.4) (2.0) {2.4) {8.3)
Pension plans and similiar commitments - - - 0.1 4.4) (0.8) 27 {2.4)
Provisions 2.5 - 2.5 0.5 7.2 23 - 2.5
Liabilities 7.8 0.7 8.3 0.1 (20.9) 14.9 - 24
Taxloss and credit carry-forward 9.3 - 4.3 0.7 41.3 (6.5} - 44.8
Qther - - - - 0.5 0.8 0.1 14
Total 27.8 - 27.8 0.3 (437.0) 34.5 0.4 {374.0
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Unrecognised lax assels are based on the Managements expectation about the future taxable profits during the periods in which those
temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards become deductible. Management considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities
and projected future taxable income in making this assessment. Based upon the leve! of historical {axable income and projections for future
taxable income over the pericds in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, it is probable the Group will realize the benefits of these
deductible differences.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognized with respect to the following items (gross amounis):

1 May 2018 - 30 1 May 2017 - 30

September 2019 April 2018

EURmM (17 months) (12 months)
Capital foss carry forwards 0.1 -

Tax loss carry forwards 6.7 7.2

Total unrecognized tax carry forwards 6.8 7.2

The tax loss carry-forward of EUR 96,6 million {2018; EUR 7.2 million) includes tax losses of EUR 9.8 millicn (2018: EUR 3.8 million) that
can be carried forward for § to 20 years. The remaining tax loss have no expiry date.

Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities

The Group has not recognized deferred tax liabilities for income axes or foreign withho!ding taxes on the cumulative earnings of subsidiaries
of EUR 7.6 million as of 30 September 2019 because the earnings are intended to be permanently reinvested in the subsidiaries.

Accounting policies

Income tax comprises current tax and changes in deferred tax for the year, including changes as a result of changes in tax rates. The tax
expense for the year is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

WS Audiology A/S is jointly {axed with all Danish subsidiaries, Danish parent entities exercising control over WS Audiclogy A/S {T&W Medical
ASS) and ary Danish subsidiaries of such parent entities. The current Danish corporation tax is allocated between the jointly taxed companies
in proportion to their taxable income. The jointly taxed companies are taxed under the on-account tax scheme.

Gurrent tax liabilities or asseis are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted in each
jurisdiction by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is measured using the balance sheet lfability method and comprises all temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax base of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is not recognised for taxable or deductible temporary differences:
« arising from the initial recognition of goodwill
«  on the initial recogniticn of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of the transac-
tion, affects neither accounting profit nor {axable profit
+  associated with investmenis in subsidiaries, branches, asscciates and joint arrangements to the exient that the Group is able to
contrel the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the termporary differences wilt not reverse in
the foreseeable fulure,

If amortisation of goodwill is deductible for tax purpeses, a deferred tax liability is recognised on temporary differences arising afier initial
recegnition of goodwill,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using {ax rates
entacied or substantially enacted at the reporting date,

Ceferred tax asseis and tax liabilities are offset if the entity has a legaily enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and tax assetls or
intends either fo seffle current tax liabilities and tax assets or to realise the assets and setlle the liabitities simultanecusly.

Significant judgements and accounting estimates

The WS Audiology A/S Group operates in a large number of tax jurisdictions where tax legislaticn can be highly complex and subject to
interpretation. Significant judgement and estimates are required in determining the worldwide accruai for income taxes, deferred tax assels
and liabilities and uncertain tax positions.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible
ferporary differences, unused tax losses and unused {ax credits can be utilised. This judgement is made annually and based on budgets
and business plans, including planned commercial initiatives, for the coming five years unless a longer period in certain situations (e.g. for
start-up businesses) is warranted. Currently, a longer period than five years has not been applied in any of the jurisdictions in which the WS
Audiology A/S Group operates.

In the course of conducting business globally, tax and transfer pricing disputes with tax autherities may occur. Management judgement is
applied to assess the possible outcome of such disputes. The “most probable outcome™ method is used when determining whether to
recognise any amounts related to such uncertain tax position. if it is probabie that a tax adjustment wiil be required, the amount of such
adjustment is measured at the most likely amount or the expected value, whichever method better predict the resultion of the uncerlain tax
position.
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3 Operating assets and liabilities

3.1 Intangible assets

Customer
Development relationship,
EURm Goodwitl projects  Patents and rights Software Total
Cost at 1 May 2018 159.9 11.3 61,2 20.8 252.9
Foreign exchange adjustments 75 2.4 7.4 1.8 294
Additions on company acguisitions 91.7 - 416 - 133.3
Business combination - merger 3.234.0 771 23687 377 5,717.5
Additions - 57.9 - 8.2 66.1
Disposals (0.3) - - (2.0 {2.3)
Cost at 30 September 2019 3,452.8 148.7 2,488,9 656.2 6,196.6
Amortisation and impairment at 1 May 2018 - - (37.4) (13.8) (51.2}
Foreign exchange adjustments - (1.0} (2.9) (1.1} {5.0)
Additicns on company acgusitions - - (0.8) - {0.6)
Business combinations - merger - (25.3) (321.7) (16.8) (363.8)
Amartisation - (11.2) (119.1) (7.9) (138.2)
Disposals - - - 1.7 17
Impairment - (8.3 - - {8.3)
Transfers 0.1 - - - 0.1
Amortisation and impairment at 3¢ September 2019 0.1 {45.8) {481.7) {37.9) {565.3)
Carrying amount at 30 September 2019 3,492.9 102.9 2,007.2 28.3 5,631.3
Cost at 30 April 2017 156.1 . 61.2 178 2349
Effect of implementation of IFRS - - - - -
Cost at 1 May 2017 156,1 - 61.2 17.6 234.9
Foreign exchange adjustmenis {i2.2) - {1.7) (0.7} {14.6)
Additions 16.2 11.3 21 3.5 3341
Disposals {0.2) “ {0.4) - {0.6}
Cost at 3¢ April 2018 159.9 11.3 61.2 20,4 252.8
Amortisation and impairment at 30 April 2017 - - {32.6) {10.6) {43.2}
Amortisation and impairment at 1 May 2017 - - (32.6) {10.6) (43.2)
Foreign exchange adjustments - - 0.9 0.2 141
Amartisation - - (6.1) {3.2) (9.3)
Disposals - - 0.5 {0.2) 0.3
Amortisation and impairment at 30 April 2018 - - (37.3} (13.8) [51.4}
Carrying amount at 30 April 2018 159.9 11.3 23.9 6.6 2.7
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Development costs

1 May 2018 -30 1 May 2017 =30

September 2049 April 2018
EURm {17 months) (12 months)
Research and development cost incurred 118.1 387
Developmen{ costs capitalised as development projects {57.9) {11.3)
Depreciation of operating assets etc., used for development purposes 3.4 1.3
Amotisation and impairmen{ of capitalised development projects 20.4 0.8
Total expensed development costs 84.0 29.5

Please refer to note 5.1 for further information about Increases in goodwill retated to the business combinations in 2018719 including goodwill
recognised on the merger between Sivantos and Widex.

There were no impairment fosses recognized on goodwill at 30 September 2019 and 30 April 20148. EUR 8.3 miliion of impairment losses
was recognised on development projects in 2019 due to significant changes in the technological market (2018: Nil).

Accounting policies

Goodwill

On initial recognition, goodwill is recognised and measured at cost as described in Accounting policies In note 5.1, Subsequently goodwill is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.,

Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group's cash generating units (CGUs) expected to benefit from synergies of the business combination, and that represent the lowest
lavel at which the goodwilt is monitored for internal management purposes. The lowest level at which the goodwill is tested for impairment
is at the Jevel of operating segments before aggregation accerding to IFRS 8 Operating Segments.

CGUs (or operating segments} to which goodwilt has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the CGU may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the CGU, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and then {o the other assets of the CGU on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
pericd.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets include development projects, acquired intellectual property, trademarks, patents and licenses, acquired customer
contracts and relationships, software and other internally generated intangible assets.

Development projects that are clearly defined and identifiable, where the technical feasibility of completion, availability of adequale resources
to complete, existence of potential future market can be demonstrated, and where Management has the intent to manufacture, market or
apply the product of process in guestion are recognised as intangible assets. Other development costs are recognised as costs inthe income
statement as incurred. The cosis of development projects comprise all directly afiributable cosis including wages, salaries, costs to external
consultants, rent, materials and services and other costs.

Intangibte assets other than goodwill are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, Amortisation is provided
on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the assets to their estimated residual value if any.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Completed development prejects 3 years
Patents, licenses and other similar rights 3-10 years
Customer relationships acquired 2-10 years
Customer contracts 15-20 years
Trademark 20 years
Acquired intellectual property 8-12 years
Software and clher internally generated intangible assels 3-10 years

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis,

Significant judgements and accounting estimates

ldentification of cash generating units

Management has determined that WS Audiolegy only has cne operating segment in accordance with IFRS 8, which is refated to developing,
producing and selling of hearing aids, and the entire value chain from development to sale of hearing aids to end customer is integrated and
interrelated. Management has assessed that the goodwill acquired relates to the entire combined value chain and monitors goodwill at group
level.



WS Audiology A/S 20

Determination of useful lives
Management applies judgements in determination of the useful lives of intangible assets.

For patents, licenses, acquired intellectual property and other intangible assets arising from contractual or other legal rights, the useful life
is the shorter of the period of the confractual or legaf rights and the econemic useful life.

For acquired customer contracts and relationships, the useful life is based on normal attrition/churn rates within the hearing aid business in

the market in question, with a maximum of 10 years, except in exceptional situations, where a longer useiul life can be justified. The useful
life for customer contracts is based on the contractual term including expected exiensions of the term.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Other plant,
buildings and fixfures and
leasehold Plant and operating Assets under

EURm improvements Machinery equipment construction Total
Cost at 1 May 2018 28.2 896 64.9 53 168.0
Foreign exchange adjusiments 4.0 0.8 4.0 0.2 9.0
Business combination - merger G7.9 37.0 89.7 7.2 181.8
Additicns on compzany acquisitions - othess 0.5 0.1 0.5 - 1.1
Additions 111 100 12.0 5.3 38.4
Disposals (5.0) (6.5) 9.7) (1.3) (22.5)
Transfers 2.0 5.1 (1.2) (5.9) -
Cost at 30 September 2019 168.7 116.1 140.2 10.8 375.8
Amortisation and impairment at 1 May 2018 (8.0} (51.1) {46.2) - {105.3}
Foreign exchange adjustments (1.7} {0.5) {3.0) - (5.2)
Business combination - merger (21.9) (19.3) (36.8) - (78.0}
Additions of company acquisitions - others ¢.2) 0.1) {0.3) - {0.6)
Depreciations (11.9) (11.6} (11.0} - {34.5)
Disposals 27 4.9 6.7 - 143
Impairment - {1.0) “ 1.1 {2.1)
Transfers {0.2) - - - {0.2)
Amortisation and impairment at 30 September 2019 (41.2) (78.7) (30.6) {1.1} {211.5)
Carrying amount at 30 September 2018 67.5 374 49.6 9.7 164.2
Cost af 30 April 2017 338 65.1 60.% 1.8 161.6
Cost at 1 May 2017 33.8 55.1 60.9 1.8 161.6
Foreign exchange adjustments {1.8) (0.8} (2.8) - (5.2)
Additions 0.2 6.9 7.4 37 18.2
Disposals (2.3) (1.8) (2.7) - (6.6)
Transfers 1.9) - 21 (0.2} -
Cost at 30 Aprit 2018 28.2 63.6 54.9 5.3 168.0
Amortisation and impairment at 30 April 2017 {10.0} 47.7) (42.8) - {100.5)
Amortisation and impairment at 1 May 2017 (10.0) (47.7) {42.8) - {100.5)
Foreign currencytranslation adjustments 0.3 07 1.5 - 2.5
Transfers 1.2 - (1.2} . -
Depreciation for the year ©.7) {5.3) (6.0} - {120}
Disposals during the year 1.4 1.2 21 - 4.7
Amortisation and impairment at 30 April 2018 {7.8) {51.1) [46.4} - (105.3)
Carrying amount at 30 April 2018 20.4 18.5 18.5 5.3 62.7

EUR 2.1 miilion of impairment losses was recognised on property, plant and equipment in 20192 (2018: Nil).

The WS Audiology A/S Group has contractual commitments for purchases of property, plant and equipment amounting to EUR 6.6 million
as of 30 September 2019 (30 April 2018; EUR Nil}.
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Accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciations and impairment losses. Cost comprises the purchase
price and costs direclly attributable to bringing the asset to its location and condition necessary for its intended use. In addition, the initial
estimate of the costs related to dismantiing and removing the asset and restoring the site on which the asset is located are added to the
cost, if relevant. Where individual components of an item of property, plant and equipment, that is material, have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items, and depreciated separately. Borrowing costs are included in the cost for assets that necessarily take
a subsiantial period of lime to get ready for the inlended use.

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the expected usefut lives of preperty, pfant and eguipment, taking into account the
expected residual value after the end of the useful life. The expected useful lives are as follows:

+  Factory and office buildings 20-50 years
+  Technical machinery & equipment 4.10 years
+  Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment, furniture etc. 3-5 years

Land is not depreciated.

Estimated useiul lives and residual values are reassessed annuaily. If the residual vaiue exceeds the carrying amount, depreciation is
discontinued. When changing the expected useful lives or the expecied residual value, the effect on the depreciation is recognised prospec-
tively as a change in accounting estimates.

Cepreciation is recognised in the income statement as production costs, development costs, distribution costs and administrative expenses.
3.3 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

Depreciation, amerlisation and impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are contained in line items Cost of Sales,
Research and development expenses or, selling and general administrative expenses, depending on the use of the asset.

The impairment of intangible assets relate to capitalised development cost a specific development project for which management no longer
believe that there will be a market for the output from the development project i finished. The development project was terminated, and
hence the recoverable amount is nil.

Impairment test —~ Goodwill

The recoverable amount of the CGUs were based on fair value less costs to sell, determined mainly by computing the Enterprise Value
{“EV") by applying the Last Twelwe Months (LTM) EV/EBITDA multiple range of comparable lisied companies. The carrying amount of the
CGUs was determined to be lower than its recoverable amount and the Group has no impairment loss to be recognised.

Key assumptions used in determination of the fair value less costs to sell are LTM normalized EBITDA based adjustments for one-time cost
as described in the management commentary, the market based EV/EBITDA multiple applied, aiong with the relevant illiquidity discounts
and conirel premium accounting for the ownership structure of WS Audiology. These are level 3 inputs according to the fair value hierarchy.

Management has identified that no reasonably possible change in two key assumptions of budgeted EBITDA or EV/ EBITDA muttipes could
cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount.

Accounting policies

Impairment
Goedwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and infangible assets not yet availabie for use, e.g. development projects in progress,
are not subject to amortisation, but are tested for impairment at least annually, irrespeciive of whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired.

Other intangible assets, which are subject to amortisation, and properiy, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 1f assets do nof generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from cther assets or groups of assets, the impairment test is performed at the levet of the CGU to which the asset
belong.

Recoverability of assets is measured by comparing the carrying amount of the asset or CGU with the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of the asset's or CGU's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.

If the carrying amount of an asset, or of the CGU to which the asset belong, is higher than its recoverable amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount, and an impairment ioss is recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of intangible assets, other than goodwill, and impairment of property, plant and eguipment Is reversed only to the extent of
changes in the assumptions and estimates underlying the impairment calculation. Impairment is only reversed fo the exfent that the asset's
new carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amaount of the asset after amortisation had the asset not been impaired,
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Significant judgements and accounting estimates

The Group generally uses the Enferprise value to datermine the recoverable amount of the CGU. The estimation of future cash flows of the
LTM normalized EBITDA is inherently associated with significant uncertainty.

Key assumptions on which Management has based its determination of CGUs and recoverable amounis include the LTM normalized
EBITDA and EV/EBITDA muttiples.

The LTM normalized EBITDA uses prejections that represent Management's best estimate of the future cash flows generated by the CGU,
based on the most recent financial budgets for the coming year and forecasts for the subsequent years approved by Management.

3.4 Other non-current and current financial assets

Other non-current financial assets are as follows:

30 September 30 April
2019 2018
Customer loans 103.3 50.9
Trade receivables, non-current 0.9 -
Derivative financial instruments 10.6 -
Cthers 7.5 13.4
Total 122.3 64.3
OCther current financiai asseis are as follows:
30 September 34 April
2018 2018
Loans receivables from related parties 01 -
Derivative financial instruments i6 -
Customerloans 29.2 324
Cihers 8.7 54
Total 49.6 37.6

The helow fable shows the carrying amount of customer [oans by categories representing Management's credit risk assessment (credif risk
rating grades) and gross carrying amounts.

Basis for recognition  Estimated gross
of expected credit carrying amount
loss {EURm)

Expected credit

The WS Audiology Group internal credit rating loss {ECL) rate

12-month expeacted

rformi 59 115.9

Performing ’ credit loss

Underosrfosming 42% Lifetime expacted credit 25.4
losses
Assels derecognised

Write-of f 100% through the income -
statemeant

Total customer loans at 39 September 2019 142.3

The 12-month and lifetime expected credi{ losses (ECL) have developed as follows:
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Under-
EURmM Performing performing Total
{12-month ECL}) (Lifetime ECL.)
Closing loss allow ance as at 1 May 2018 (calculated under IFRS 9) 35 0.7 4.2
New custemer loans 1.5 1.3 2.8
Loan recovered (1.7 - (1.7
Imgairment loss for the year - 4.5 4,5
Closing loss allowance as at 30 September 2019 (calculated
33 6.5 9.8
under [FRS 9)

The following significant changes in gross carrying amount of customer loans confributed to changes in the loss allowance:
New customer loans of EUR22 milion was issued in the period 1 Mar 2019 to 30 September 2019
- Customers with gross carrying amount of EUR 14.0 million went from performing {o underperforming
- Customer loans with a gross carrying amouni of EUR 23.4 miltien were repaid in the pericd 1 Mar 2019 to 3¢ Seplember 2019

Accounting policies

Customer loans

Customer loans are initially recognised at fair value less transaction costs and subseguently measured at amortised cost less loss allowance
or impairment losses. Any difference between the nominal value and the fair value of the loans at initia recognition is treated as a prepaid
discount on future sales to the customer, and is recognised in the income statement as a reduction of revenue as and when the customer
purchases goods from the WS Audiclogy A/S Group.

The fair value of customer loans at initial recognition is measured at the present value of future repayments of the loan discounted at a
market interest rate corresponding to the money market rate based on the expected maturity of the loan with the addition of a risk premium.
The effective interest on customer loans is recegnised as interest inceme in the income statement over the term of the loans.,

A loss allowance is recognised at initiat recognition and subsequently based on {2-months expected credit losses, unless a significant
increase has arisen since the initial recognition of the loan, in which case the loss allowance is based on lifetime expected credit losses.

Customer loans are written off when all possible options have been exhausted and there is no reasonable expeciation of recovery.

Other loans and receivables, including loans to associates

Cther loans and receivables, including loans to assoclates are recognised inifially at fair value less directly attributable transactions costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at amorfised cost using the effective interest method less impairment. A loss allowance is recognised at
initial recognition and subsequently based on 12-months expected credit losses, unless a significant increase has arisen since the initial
recognition of the [oans and receivables, in which case the [oss allowance is based on lifetime expected credit losses.

Other investments
Other investments comprise listed and unlisted securities, which are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Significant judgements and accounting estimates

Customer loans
The WS Audiclogy A/S Group granis sales related financing in the form of loans to some of its customers. These customer loan arrange-
ments are complex, cover several aspects of the customer relationship and may vary from agreement to agreement.

Management has determined that off-market terms, if any, represent a prepayment of discounts on future sales to the customer.

Significant accounting estimates are involved in determination of the expected maturity of the loans, as repayments may to some extent be
aligned with the customers purchases of goods, and also in determining a market based discount rate for each customer loan. Management
estimates are based on cusrent market condition at the time of issuing the loan as well as histerical sales information and e.g. market
penetration rates for loans to customers without substantial history with the WS Audiology A/S Group.

The WS Audiology A/S Group's assessment of credit risk associated with customer loans and prepaid discounts primarily involves consid-
eration of the economic environment in which the customer operates, historic loss rates for customer loans, and the actual repayments on
the loans compared to the repayment plan agreed when the loans were issued.,

For customer loans performing in all material respect, and for which no other indications of increase in credit risk exist, the expected credit
foss on the custemer lean and related prepaid discount is measured at 12-month expected credit loss. For customer loans that are under-
performing compared to the repayment plan agreed when the loans were issued, or for which there are other indications of increase in credit
risk, the expected credit [oss is measured at lifetime expected credit foss.

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience aver the past years. These rates are multiplied by factors to reflect possible differences
between economic conditions during the period over which the historic data has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
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The calculation of 12-month expected credit losses on customer loans are based on a weighted average of historical annual losses on
customers. Payment plans are agreed with customers when issuing loans to these. The credit risk of loans to customers is considered to
have in-creased significantly since initial recegnition when actual 1gan balances differ frem the agreed development in [oan balances with

more than 50%. At this point the loan is considered to be in default and credit impaired.

Based on the above, the customer loans and related prepaid discount are calegorised as either performing, non-performing or credit impared.

3.5 Other non-current and current assets

Other non-current assets are as follows:

30 September 3¢ April
2019 2018
EURmM
Prepaid assets, non-current 0.7
Asset for deferred compensation plan 3.9
Others 0.1 -
Total 4.7 ~
Other current assels are as follows:
30 September 30 April
2018 2018
EURm
Pre-paid expenses 19.2 8.6
Miscellaneous taxreceivables 14.0 -
Others 15.2 125
Total 48.4 21.1
3.6 Inventories
30 September 30 April
2018 2018
EURm
Raw materials and purchased companents 18.0 4.9
Work in progress 55 221
Finished goods and goods for resale 93.3 28.0
Inventories 116.8 55.0
Write-downs, provisions for obsoclescence ete, included in the above (25.7) {6.3}
Included in the income statement under production costs:
30 September 30 April
2019 2018
EURm
Write-dewns of inventories for the year (17.5) (4.5)
Rewersals of write-downs of inventories for the year 8.1 3.1
Cost ofgoods sold during the year (5394) {108.7)
(548.8) {110.1)

The reversal of write down of inventories of EUR 8.1 mil (2018: EUR 3.1 mil} was made as a result of a reassessment of the net realisable

values of these inventories due to changed economic circumstances.
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Accounting policies

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value, cost being generaily determined on the basis of a weighted average
of FIFC method. Cost comprise raw materials, consumables, direct labour and indirect production overheads. Indirect production overheads
comprise indirect supplies, wages, and salaries, amortisation of brands and software, as well as mainienance and depreciation of machinery,
plant and equipment used far production.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling
ExXpenses.

3.7 Trade receivables and contract assets

Currentriot  1-30days  3-60days O T0UIYS oy tnn qayg  More than
due past due past due past past due 181 days Total
due pastdue
EURmM
Gross carrying amount - Trade receivables 2554 33.3 244 13,7 18.1 31.3 378.2
Sales rebates (23.3) (23.3)
Loss allowance at 30 September 2018 (3.5) (1.6} (0.4} (1.4) (3.6) (16.4) (26.9}
(expected credi loss model)
Trade receivables at 30 September 2019 228.6 317 24.0 123 14,6 14.9 326.0
Expected loss rate -1.4% -4.8% «1.6% -18.2% -19.9% -52.4% -7.2%

The below table shows the movement in lifetime expected credit losses that has been recognised for trade receivables and contract assets
in accordance with the simplified approach set out in IFRS 9,

Individually

Collectively assessed (credit
EURmM assassed impaired} Total
Opening loss allowance as at 1 May 2018 (calcufated under FRS 9) {6.4) - {6.4}
Transfer te credit impaired 1.8 (1.7} G.1
Changes from business combinations 2.0) 3.9) (5.9}
Net remeasuremeant of loss allowance (12.0) (7.5) (19.5)
Amounts written off 50 - 50
Amounts recovered 1.3 0.2 1.5
Change in loss allowanice due to new receivables, niet of receivables settled - (0.8} (0.8)
Cther changes 0.4 {1.3) (0.9)
Closing loss allowance as at 30 September 2019 (calculated under IFRS 9) {11.9) {16.0} {26.9)

Receivables acquired in business combinations are recognised in the consolidated financial statements at fair vatue at the date of acquisition,
which in most cases equals the carrving amounts net of loss allowance. Expected credit losses related to receivabies acquired in business
cembinations are therefore only included in the above to the extent that the loss allowance for the receivables has increased compared to
the acquisition date.

Accounting policies
Trade receivables and contract assets are measured at amortised cost less allowance for fifetime expected credit losses.

To measure the expected credit losses, frade receivables and contract assefs have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. For irade receivables and contract assets that are considered credit impaired, the expected credit loss is determined
individually.

Trade receivables and contract assets are writtens off when all possible options have been exhausted and there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery.

Significant judgements and acceounting estimates
The WS Audiology A/S Group has historically suffered insignificant credit lesses on trade receivables and contract assets.
Loss allowance is calculated using a provision matrix that incorporates an ageing factor, gecgraphical risk and specific customer knowledge.

The provision matrix is based on historical credit losses incurred within relevant {ime bands of days past due adjusted for a forward looking
element.
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3.8 Other non-current and current financial liakilities

Cther non-current financial liabllities are as follows:

30 September 30 Apri}
2019 2018
EURmM
Derivative financial instruments 169.% -
Others 3.8 10.4
Total 113.8 10.4
Other current financial liabilities are as follows:
30 September 30 April
2019 2018
EURm
Bonuses and discounts fo cusiomers 27 6.2
Contingent considerations from acquisitions c4 -
Derivative financial instruments 40 -
Others 218 1289
Liabikities from rebates 55 -
Customers with net credit balances 3.2 -
37.6 1301

Total

Contingent consideration from business combinations relates to components of the purchase price for which the paymenis depend on the
achievement of defined performance measures. For additicnal informaticn related to business combinations in the period, refer o note 5.1

Accounting policies
Other financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value fess iransaction costs and subsequently at amertised cost using the effective
interest rate method,

The Group bifurcates embedded derivatives at initial recognition when they are not closely-related to the respective host contract. Bifurcated
derivalives are measured af fair value through profit or loss.,
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3.9 Other non-current and current liabilities

Other non-current Eabilities are as follows:

30 September 30 Apri
2019 2018
EURmM
Employee related liabilities 10.0 -
Deferred revenue 14.3 -
Liability under MPP scheme 38.1 -
Other 6.9 7.2
Total 69.3 7.2
Other current liabilities are as follows:
30 September 30 April
2019 2018
EURmM
Employee costs payable 451 19.5
Sales {ax and other tax liabilities 12.2 1.4
Payroll and sccial security taxes 238 3.6
Bonus obligations 270 7.1
Deferred revenue 54 -
Other liabilities 446 38.8
Total 158.1 704
Accounting policies
Other liabilities are measured at amortised cost.
3.10 Provisions
Asset
Right of Retirement
EURmM Warranties returns  Obligation Other Total
Provision at 1 May 2018 11.8 37 - 1.4 16.9
Foreign exchange adjusiments 2.1 05 0.4 (1.3} 1.8
Additions 28.9 7.7 0.2 0.7 375
Additions through business combinations 288 16.0 23 4.2 51.3
Usages {16.1) (0.3) - (3.8) (20.2)
Rewersals (7.2) (3.1) {G.1) (0.2) (10.6)
Accretion and effect of changes in discount rates (0.3) - - - (0.3}
Provision at 30 September 2019 48.0 246 2.5 1.0 76.2
Which is presented in the consolidated balance sheet as
Non-current liabilities 258 - 25 - 283
Current liabilities 22.2 246 - 1.1 47.9
Provision at 30 September 2019 48.0 245 2.5 1.1 76.2

The Group's provisions are generally expected to result in cash outflow during the next one to ten years.

Right of return relates to preducts sold for which customers have the right to return the products at their own discretion within a specified
period. Based on historical data, return rates are calculated and provisions are recorded to cover the expected cost.

Warranties primarily refate to products sold. The warranty provision represent Managements best estimate of the Group's liability under
assurance type warranties granted on hearing aids sold. The warranty pericd of regular assurance type warranties differ depending on
jurisdiction and range between 1 and 3 years.
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Asset retirement obligation relates to the Group's obligations to restore rented premises {o the certain standards upon the expiry of the lease
contracts including removal of feaseheld improvements and other assets from the premises.

Accounting policies

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an oulflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect Is material, provisions are measured at present value by discounting the expected future cash flows expected to setife the liability
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money.

A provision for onerous contract is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable costs of meeting its obligations under the contract. The unavoidable cost is the lower of the expected cost of fulfifling the contract
and the expected cost of terminating the contract.

Significant judgements and accounting estimates

Significant estimates are involved in the determination of provisions related to warranly costs, right of return, legal proceedings and onercus
contracts. [ue to the technolegical features of the Group's products, the Group incurs a substantial amount of warranty costs and the
determination of future warranty costs retated to products sold is based on historic results as well as estimated product defects.

In some jurisdictions, the WS Audiclogy A/S Group sells extended warranties to customers and/or provide other service-type warranties in
addition to regular (assurance-type) warranties. Such warranties are treated as separate performance obligations in the confracts with the
customers and are recognised as confract liabilities and not provisions. In determining whether a warranty is an assurance type warranty or
a service type warranty, Management considers factors such as whether the warranty is required by law, the length of the warranty coverage
period and the nature of the tasks that the entity promises to perform in case of product defects. Generally, warranties covering periods after
3 years from the sale of the hearing aid are considered 1o be service-type warranties and treated as separate performance obligations.

The WS Audioiogy A/S Group is from time to time subject to legal disputes and regulatory proceedings in several jurisdictions. Such pro-
ceedings may result in criminal or civil sanctions, penalties, damage claims and other claims against the Group. Regulatory and legal pro-
ceedings as well as government investigations often involve complex legal issues and are subject to substantial unceriainties. Accordingly,
Management exercises considerable judgement in determining whether there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, whether i{
is more likely than not that an outflow of economic resources will be required and the estimated amount of such outflow. Management
consider the input of external counsels on each case, as well as known ouicomes in case law. Aithough, Management believes that the total
provisions for legal proceedings are adequate based an currently available information, there can be no assurance that there will not be any
changes in facts or circumstances, or that any future fawsuits, claims, proceedings or investigations wiil not be material.

4 Capital structure and financing items

4.1 Outstanding shares

Nominal
value of Nominal
Total outstanding value of total
Gutstanding number of shares shares
shares (mil) shares (mil) EURm EURm
Numberfvalue of shares
Bsued in connection with the acguisition of ow nership interest in subsidiaries 100 100 100 100
Number/value of shares at 30 September 2019 100 100 100 160

All shares are fully issued and paid up. The share capital was nominally EUR 100 mitlion divided into a corresponding number of shares of
100 million. There are no restrictions on the negotiability or voting rights of the shares.

Capital management

The WS Audiology A/S Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future development of the business. The Group has retained its earnings that have been accumulated since the merger of Si-
vantos and Widex to strengthen its Equity.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt {short-term and long-term borrowings disciosed in notes 4.3 after deducting cash
and cash equivlents) and equity of the Group (comprising issued capital, reserves, retained earnings and non-controlling interests).
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The Group has raised debt to finance the establishment of the Greup through the merger of Sivantos and Widex. The debt raised consist
of Facility B1 EUR1,895.0 million and Facility B2 USD1,160.0 million under the Senior Facilittes Agreement and the applicable interest rate
is Euribor plus 4.0% with a 0% floor and Libor plus 3.75% respectively. In addition, the Group had a 2nd lien facility EUR525million and the
applicable interest rate is Euribor plus 6.75%. The Group had also drawn on Revoiving Facility EUR17.0 million and applicable interest
rate is Euribor plus 2.75%.

In July 2019, the Group had drawn an additional of EUR 60.0 miilion en Revolving Facility maturing in 2025, The applicable interest rate is
Euribor plus 2.75%. The proceed has been used for working capital for the Group.

In August 2019, the Group had new Incremental term loans of EUR 67.5 million and USD 75.0 million under the Senior Fagilities Agree-
ment and the applicable interest rate is Euribor pius 4.0% with a 0% floor and Libor plus 3.75% respeclively. All proceed were applied to
an acquisition in USA and working capital for the Group.

The Senior Secured Term Loans are secured by a pledge of the shares of major subsidiaries as well as pledge of asseis of major subsidi-
aries and are subject to a loan covenant. The Group has complied with to the fean covenant imposed by the Senior Facilities Agreement.

Accounting poiicies

Proposed dividend is recognised as a liability ai the date when it is adopted at the Annual General Meeting {declaration date), The divi-
dend recommended by ihe Board of Directors, and therefore expecied to be paid for the year, is disclosed in the notes.

4.2 Financial risks and financial instruments

Financial risk management
The WS Audiolegy A/S Group is exposed to several financial risks arising from its operating, investing and financial activities, including
market risk (foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), iquidity risk and credit risk.

The Group is managed centrally by Management, which is responsible for the operating business, cemprising commercial risk with hedge
accounting to reduce volatility in the income statement.

Financial risks are managed by Treasury in accordance with the WS Audiology Foreign Currency Hedging Pelicy approved by Group CFO.
The Group enters financial instruments only to mitigate these financial risks. it is the Group pelicy to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence, and to sustain fulure development of the business. The objective, policies and processes for managing the risk exposure to
these items are summarized In the table below and further explained in the following sections.

Credit risk

Credit risk is defined as an unexpected loss in cash and earnings if the customer is unable to pay its obligations in due time. The Group may
incur losses if the credit quality of its customers deteriorates or if they default on their payment obligations to the Group. The Group's
exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables including loans to customers.

The Group has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an angoing basis. This includes the review of individual
receivables and of individual custormer creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis as well as the review of current economic trends, the
analysis of historical bad debts on a portfolio basis, and the considers country credit ratings. Credit evaluations are performad on all cus-
tomers requiring credit over a certain amouni. The Group does not require cellateral in respect of financial assets. However, the Group has
credit enhancements such as personal guarantees and share pledge related {0 customer loan. Assessment of the credil risk related to
customers is further described in note 3.4 Other non-current and current financial assets and note 3.7 Trade receivables and contract assets.

There were no significant concendrations of credit risk as of the 30 September 2018 and 30 April 2018.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of financial assets is represented by their carrying amount. Concerning irade receivables and other
receivables, as well as loans or receivables included in line item Qther financial assets that are neither impaired nor past due, there were no
indications as of 30 September 2019, that defaults in payment obligations wiil ocour,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk results fram the Group’s potential inability to meet its financial liabilities, in particutar paying its suppliers and servicing its
interest-bearing debt. In addition te having impiemented effective working capital and cash management, the Group has implemented short-
term and medium term-liquidity forecasis. Treasury monitors the level of expected cash inflows on {rade and other receivables together with
expected cash outflows on trade and other payables.

The Group maintain an in-house banking setup within Sivantos Pte Ltd (Singapore} "Treasury”. Cash from is related entities is pooled
centrally for an efficient cash management and ireasury purposes. The arrangement is governed by agreements signed by Sivanios Pte Lid
and related entities, which mits joint and several liabilities to each party’s net ¢redit balance at any time with Sivantos Ple Ltd.

The Group has access to a Revolving Credit Facility of EUR 260.0 million of which EUR 82.6 miilion was utilised as of 30 September 2019.

The Group finances itself from its operating cash flow and utilizing the Group's cash pooling and cash management systems, in which
excess liquid funds are deposited at Treasury by its affiliates.

The Group has secured term loans 1o finance the merger of Sivantos and Widex. The Senior Secured Term Loans are secured by a pledge
of the shares of major subsidiaries as well as pledge of assets of major subsidiaries.
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The Group had cash and cash equivalents of EUR 142.7 miflion as of 30 September 2019 {30 April 2018: EUR 36.9 millicn). In addition, the
Greup has access to EUR 177.4 million (30 April 2018: EUR 14.2 miflicn) available Revolving Credit Facility as of 30 September 2018. With
its strong operating cash flow the Group expects to be able to meet all of its present and future obligations arising from operational cash
needs.

The following table reflects all contractually fixed pay-offs for settlement, repayments and interest resulting from recognized financial liabili-
ties. It includes expected net cash outflows from derivative financial liabitities that were in place as per 30 September 2019 and 30 April
2018. Such expected net ¢cash outflows are undiscounted net cash outflaws for the respective upcoming fiscal years, based on the eatliest
date on which the Group could be required to pay. Cash outflows for financial liabitities {inciuding interest) without fixed amount or timing
are based on the conditions existing at 30 September 2019 and 306 Aprit 2018.

less than Between More than

EURm 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
201819

Interest-bearing debt 191.7 757.0 39798 4,928.5
Trade payables 198.5 - - 198.5
Other financial liabilities 33.6 42.0 - 756
Total non-derivative financial labilities 423.8 798 3,679.8 5,202.6
Derivative financial liabilities 4 109.9 - 113.9

The risk implied from the values in the table above reflects the one-sided scenario of cash outfiows enly. Obligations under trade payables
and other financial Yabilities mainly originate from the financing of assets used in the Group's ongoing operations such as property, plant
and equipment, and investments in working capital such as inventories and trade receivables. These assels are considered in the Group's
overall iguidity risk management.

Foreign currency risk
Transaction risk and foreign currency exchange rate risk management

The WS Audiclogy A/S Group has exposure towards foreign currency exchange rate risk arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, in
connection with international operations. The exposure is particutarly regarding fluctuations of the USD, EUR, CAD and CNY in the ordinary
course of business. The general policy is 1o reduce the Group currency exposure mainly through employment of foreign exchange forward
contracts to mitigate the group's major risks from adverse FX movements’ impact on consolidated earnings for 3-12 months rolling forward.

Foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations may create unwanted and unpredictable earnings and cash flow volatility. The Group manufac-
tures most of its products at its headquarters in Singapore and Denmark. The products are sold to its regiona! entities and invoiced in the
currency of the buying entities, mostly in EUR and USD. As most of the material cost are also EUR and USD dencminated, the Group is
able to significanily reduce the nef currency exposure.

The foreign currency risk is centrally managed by Group Treasury in cooperation with the Group entities in the countries. It is the Group’s
policy for the entities not fo undertake any financial transactions in foreign currencies of a specutative nature. It is a target for the Group te
maintain an adequate hedging level of between 40% and 75% of the net foreign currency exposure. Cash flow hedge accounting shall be
applied to the extent possibie to mitigate negative impacts of adverse development from foreign exchange risk on the consolidated operating
result of the Group.

Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk

The following table demonstrates the approximate effect on the Group's Total comprehensive income Statement (financial items) in response
to fluctuation of the currencies other than the respective group entities’ functional currencies which the group enfities have significant
exposure at the balance sheet date. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

30 September 2049
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Other Total

EURm Profit/{Loss) comprehensive comprehensive
income income

UsDb +5% (48.7) - {48.7)
EUR +5% (12.9) {12.9)
CAD +5% 1.8 1.8
CNY +5% 0.4 0.4

Cash flow hedges of foreign currency risk

Hedging instruments:

Notional value:

Carrying amount of

Carrying amount of

Notional value: Functional hedging hedging
Average exchange rate Foreign currency (EUR) instruments - instruments -
currency Assefs Liabilities

30-Sep-19 Rate mil EURM EURmM EURmM
Sell AUD
< 6 months 1.62 (227} 14.0 - *
6-12 months 1.64 (3.3) 2.0 - "
SellCAD
< 3 months 1.48 (11.8) 8.0 - 0.1)
6-12 months 1.49 8.9) 6.0 - 0.9)
Sell GBP
< 3 months 0.87 (10.5) 12.6 0.2 -
3-6 months 0.89 (5.3) 8.0 0.1 -
Sell JPY
< 3 months 121564 (2,432.8) 20.0 - {(0.8)
3-8 months 118.13 (1,771.9) 15.0 - -
Buy SGD
< 3 months 1.55 54.1 (35.0) 0.7 -
3-6 months 1.55 62.1 (40.0) 06 -
SeliusD
< 3 months 1.14 {28.8) 25.0 - (1.0)
3-6 months 1.12 {30.3) 27.0 - 0.3)

16 (2.3)

*Amount less than EUR 0.1 mil

The following table table provides a reconciliation of components of equity and analysis of QCt items,gross of tax, resuliing from cash flow

hedge accounting:

EURm

1 May 2018 - 30
September 2019

(17 months)

Movement during the period

Foreign currency risk - Current period hedging gains recognised in other comprehensive income 26
Amount reclassified to profit/{loss) — Due to hedged item affecting profit/{loss) (1.4}

Translation risk and effects of foreign currency franslation
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Most of the Group’s entities are located outside the EUR zone. Since the WS Audiclogy A/S Group's presentation currency is the EUR, the
financial statements of foreign operations are translated into EUR for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. To consider
the effects of foreign currency translation in the risk management, the general assumption is that investments in foreign operations are
permanent and that reinvestment is continuous. Effects from foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations on the transtation of net assets
amounts into EUR are reflecied in the Group's consolidated statement of changes in equity. The WS Audiology A/S Group does not hedge
net investments in foreign operations.

Interest rate risk

The Group's long-term debt consists of secured term loans of EUR1,862.0 million and USD 1,229.0 million as well as 2™ fien term loan of
EURS525.0 millicn with a floating interest rate of which 74% have been swapped into fixed interest rate. The Group does not apply hedge
accounting in relation to these interest rate swaps..

Specification of net inferest-bearing debt

30 September
EURmM 2019
Cash and cash equivalents 142.7
Bark loans, non-current liabilities (3,472.8}
Bark loans, current Eabilities (86.8}
Total net interest-bearing debt (3,4719.9)

interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensilivity analyses has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the reporting date. For floating rate liabilities, the
anatysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. A 1% per cen{
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internaliy to key management personnel and represents management’'s as-
sessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1 per cent higher and all other variables were held constant, the Group's loss for the period ended 30 September
2019 would increase by EUR 3.3 mil This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable rafe borrowings

Accounting policies

Derivative financial insfruments, including hedge accounting

The WS Audiology A/S Group uses various financial instruments to reduce the impact of foreign exchange and interest rates on financial
results. The derivative financial instruments are used to manage the exposure {o market risk. Treasury enters into derivative contracts in
accordance with Group policies. Financial instruments used include e.q. foreign cusrency exchange contracls, interest rate swaps, interest
rate floors and redempition options (the latter two being bifurcated embedded derivatives).

All derivative financial instruments are recognised initially and subsequently at fair value. Any aitributable fransaction costs are recognised
in the income statement in other financial income, net as incurred,

On initial recognition, Management determines if the derivative financial instrument qualifies for hedge accounting and if so designates the
instrument as a hedging instrument in a fair value hedge, cash flow hedge ar hedge of net investment respectively.

Cash flow hedges

For cash flow hedges, the portion of the fair value adjustments on the hedging instriment that is an effective hedge is recognised in cther
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate reserve in equity. The cumufative fair value adjustments of these contracts is trans-
ferred from the reserve in equity and recycled to the income sfatement through other comprehensive income when the hedged transaction
is recognised in the income statement. However, when the forecast transaction subsequently result in the recognition of a non-financiat
asset or non-financial fiability, the transfer from the reserve in equity is recognised directly in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the
asset or liability without recyeling through other comprehensive income.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no lenger meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumutative gain or
foss existing in the reserve within equity at that time remains in the reserve and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss existing in the
reserve Is immediately transferred to the income statement as a recycling through other comprehensive income and recognised in olher
financial income, net.
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Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities and Fair value hierarchy
The below table shows the categories of financiat assets and financial liabilities, their carrying amounts and their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial
assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

EURm

30 September 2019

Financial assets measured at fair value
Forward Exchange Confracts (designated as hedging
instruments)

Redemplion call option and interest rate floor

Financial 555ets not measured at fair value
Trade receivebles*

Other fnancial assets {current and non-current)*
Cash and cash equivalents*

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Forward Exchange Cenlracts (designated as hadging
instruments)

Forward Exchange Coatracts (not designaled as hedging

instruments)
Interest rate swaps
Interest rate floors

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Cther financial liakilities*

Loans under Senior Faciliies Agreement

Trade payables *

Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial Financial
assets Financial liabilities
measured at  Financial assets Financial measured at
fair value assets used measured at  liabilities at fair value
through profit as hedging amortised amortised  through profit
Note and loss instruments cost costs and loss Total Level1 Leve] 2 Level 3 Total
34 - 1.6 - - - 16 1.6 - 16
a4 10.6 - - - - 10.6 - 106 0.6
106 1.6 - - - 12.2
37 - - 3260 - - 326.0 - - -
34 B - 1587 - - 169.7 - - -
- - 1427 - - 142.7 - - -
- - 6284 - - 628.4
338 B B - - 2.3 23 23 - 23
33 - - - - 17 1.7 1.7 - 1.7
38 - - - - 295 295 285 - 295
3.3 - - - - 80.4 80.4 - 804 804
- - - - 1139 113.9
3.8 - - - 375 - 375 - - -
43 - - - 3,568.6 - 3,550.6 3,559.6 - 3,559.6
- - - 198.5 - 198.5 - - -
- - - 3.785.6 - 3,795.6

" The Group has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as short-term trade receivables and payables, because their carrying amounis are a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, {rade and other receivables and trade payables with a remaining term of up to twelve months,
other current financial liabilittes and borrowings under revolving credit facilities are approximately eqgt:al to their carrying amount, mainly due
{0 the short-term maturities af these instruments.

Treasury enters into derivative contracts in accordance with Group policies. The exact calculation of fair values of derivative financial instru-
ments depends on the specific type of instrument.

Derivative currency contracts - the fair value of foreign currency exchange contracts is based on forward exchange rates. Currency options
are valued on the basis of quoted market prices or on estimates based on option pricing models.

The levels of the fair value hierarchy and its application to financial assets and financial liabilities are described below:.

Levei 1:

Level 2:
Level 3:

Type

FX contracts

Interest rate
sSwaps

Interest rate
floors

Redemption
call option

Queted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices}

Valuations metheds, with significant inputs not being based on abservable market data

Valuation Technique

The fair value of the exchange rate contracts
is based on forward exchange rates. Cur-
rency options are valued on the basis of
quoted market prices or on estimates based
on option pricing models with marked-stand-
ard inputs inclucding implied volatility (level
2).

The fair value of Interest Raje Swaps are de-
termined using discounted cash flows of
fixed leg and Net Present Value of floaling
leg based on Forward rate curve, and can be
categorized as level 2 (observable inputs) in
the fair vaiue hierarchy.

The fair value of Interest Rate Floors is based
on discounted cash flows or floorlets for intrin-
sic and option pricing models with impiied vol-
atility for time value component.

Huil-White-Twe-Factor model simulating in-
terest-rate changes as well as credit spread
changes is the valuation technigue applied to
cancellation rights with implied volatility of op-
tions on CDS as unobservable input (level 3).
An increase in implied volatility will lead to an
increase in fair value and vice versa.

‘Significant unobservable in-

puts

Not applicable

Mot applicable

Implied volatility

Implied vofatility of Options on :

cDs

Sensitivity of fair value to
significant unobservable in-

puts

Not applicable

" Not appicable

Higher implied volatility will [ead

* to higher fair value and vice

versa

Highef impiied volatility will lead '
to higher fair value and vice

< versa

The following table shows the reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements of the interest rate floors and the redemption call option:

1 May 2018 -
30 September
{17 months)
Carrying amount 1 May -
Additions through business combinations (685.6)
Total gains or losses:
- Recognised in profit/{loss) {4.2}
Carrying amount 30 September 2019 69.8
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Offsetting, Master netting agreements and similar arrangements

The WS Audiology A/S Group enters into derivative {ransactions under Internaticnal Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) master
netting agreements/FX Payment Nelting Agreements. In general, under such agreements the ameunts owed by each counterparty on a
single day in respect of all transactions cutstanding in the same currency are aggregated into a single net amount that is payable by one
party to the other. In certain circumstances — e.g. when a credit event such as a defauit cccurs — all outstanding fransaciions under the
agreement are terminated, the termination value is assessed and only a single net amount is payable in settlement of all transactions.

4.3 Liabilities from financing activities

l.oans and Interest rate
borrowings floors and Pavables
EURm under the Other short redemption Interest rate ¥ Others Total
Senior term debt options relating swap to re!at_ed
Facilities to financing parties
Agreement agreements
Liabilites at 1 May 2018 - - - " 123.2 B 123.2
Changes from financing cash flows 82.4 (1.1} - (3.2) - {9.8) 6B8.3
Changes in fair value - - 42,3 29.5 - - 718
Amortisation of transaction costs 10.0 - - - - - 10.0
Changes from business combinations on 1
March 2619 3,308.3 1.3 275 - - - 3,335.1
Other changes 160.7 - - 3.2 {0.1) 9.8 173.6
Non cash changes . “ - - {123.1) - (123.1)
Liabifities at 30 September 2018 3.559.4 0.2 68,8 28,5 - - 3.658,9
Liabilities at 1 May 2017 - - - - 129.3 - 129.3
Nor cash changes - - - - (8.1) - 6.1)
Liabilities at 30 April 2018 - - - - 123,2 - 123.2

Accounting policies

Financial liabilities, other than derivatives, are initially recognised at fair value less transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amor-
tised cost using the effective interest method. Accordingly, the difference between the proceeds and the nominal value is recognised in the
income statement over the term of the Hability,

4.4 Financial income and expenses

1 May 2018 - 30
September 1 May 2017 -
2019 30 Aprit 2018

EURm {17 months} {12 months)
Interest Income 1.4 0.3
Interestincome customerioans a7 47
Qther inferestincome 0.4 23
Total inferest income 5.2 7.3
Interest expenses (124.1} (3.7}
Interest expense from pension plans (0.2} -
Other interest expenses (2.7} (8.8)
Total interest expenses (127.0) (12.5)

QOther financials, net

Fereign currencytranslation gains/{losses) (30.2) (44)
Change in fair value of embedded derivatives (42.3) -
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments, not designated hedging instruments (23.5) -
Cthers {1.8) -
Total other financial expenses, net (97.8) {4.4)

Interest incomef{expense} includes the interest/{expense} from financial assets/(financial liabilities) not measured at fair value through profit
or l0sS.
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Accounting policies

Financial income and expenses comprise interest income and expenses, gains and losses on securities, receivables, payables and trans-
actions denominated in foreign currencies, credit card fees, amortisation and impairment of financial assets other than trade receivables and
contract assets and liabilities, gains and losses on derivative financial instruments not designated as hedging instruments etc.

Inferest income and expenses on financial assets and liabilities measured at amorlised cost is recegnised using the effective interest method.
Cther financial income and expenses are recognised on an accrual basis in the period to which they relate.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction or production of qualifying assets form part of the cost of that assets. A
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its inlended use.
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5 Other disclosures

5.1 Business combinations

Acquisition of Sivantos Group

The Group acquired Sivantos Group with acquisition date of 28 February 2019. The difference between consideration transferred and net
assels at fair value at the acquisition date amounting to EUR3,234 million was recorded as goodwill.

The consideration transferred for the acquisition was EUR2,152.9 million, which consisted of consideration as part of the reverse takeover

arrangement.

Fair vaiue of identified assets and liabilities and consideration paid in acquired businesses:

Other
EURmM Sivantos Group acquisition
Assels acquired:
Other intangible assets 2,119.7 41.0
Property, plant and equipment 103.8 0.5
Other non-current assets 1.1 -
Other non-current financial assets 3771 -
Deferred tax assets 38.3 -
Inventories 119.4 1.5
Trade and ofher receivabiles 206.3 4.9
Other current financial assets 17.3 0.7
Other current assets 317 0.5
Fair value of call option 226 -
Cash and cash equivalent 79.6 2.2
Total assets acquired at the date of acquisition 3,1269 513
Liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:
Long-term debts (3,306.3) -
Short term debts {1.1) (0.30)
Provisions (51.1% {0.2)
Deferred tax liabilities (467.8) {7.7)
Pension obligations (9.00) -
Other financial liabilities (40.0) -
Other liabilities (21.1) -
Trade payables (131.7) (10.40}
Other current financial liabilities {55.8) (1.00}
Income taxes payables (20.0} (0.10)
Other current liabilities (68.4} (0.6)
Total liabitities assumed at the date of the acquisition (4,161.9} {20.3)
Net assets acquired (1,035.0) 31.0
Goodwill 3,234.0 91.7
Fair value of non-confrolling interest (46.1) -
Total consideration transferred 2,152.9 122.7
Fair value of contingent consideration and deferred payments - {8.8)
Consideration as part of the reverse takeover arrangement {2,152.9) -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (79.6) {2.2}
Tota! cash consideration {received)/paid (79.6) 111.7

The Group incurred acquisition-relaied cost of EUR15.4m in fiscal year 2019 for legal fees and due diligence services. These costs have

been included as part of profit or [ess when incurred.

The goodwill arising on acguisition includes a new customer base expansion through new channels and new markets, new technologies
which are not separately identifiable but contribute significantly to the business enterprise value and an assembled workforce, Goodwill will

not be deductible for tax purposes.
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Share of revenue

EURm

The share of revenue and profit/{foss) for the year from the acquisition date:

Revenue 803.0
EBIT 36.4
l.oss for the year (173.2)
The share of revenue and profitffloss) if acquisitions had taien place af 1 May 2018

Revenue 1,813.30

EBIT 94.40

Loss for the year {319.10)

Accounting policies

Newly acquired or newly established enterprises are recognised in the consolidated financial statements from the time of acquisition or
formation. The time of acquisition is the dale when control of the enterprise is transferred to the Group. On acquiring new enterprises of
which the Group obtains control, the purchase methed is applied according to which their identified assets, liabilities and contingent lisbilities
are measured at their fair values on the acquisition date, Any non-current assets acquired for the purpose of resale are, however, measured
at their fair values less expected costs to sell. Restructuring costs are solely recognised in the pre-acquisition balance sheet if they are a
liability for the acquired enterprise. Any tax effect of revaluations will be taken into account.

Goodwill is measured at the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling inferests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree (if any) over the net of acquisition date fair values of the
ideniifiable assets and liabiiities and contingent liabiities. Goodwill is not amortised but tested at least annually for impairment. The first
impairment test is performed within the end of the acquisition year.

The consideration transferred consists of the fair value of the consideration paid for the enterprise. If the final consideration is conditional
upon one or more future events, the consideration will be recognised at the fair value on acquisition. Any subsequent adjustment of contin-
gent consideration is recognised directly in the income statement, unless the adjustment is the result of new information about conditions
prevailing on the acquisition date, and this information becomes available up to 12 months after the acquisition date. Transaction costs are
recognised directly in the income statement when incurred.

if, on the acquisition date, there are any uncertainties with respect to identifying or measuring acquired assets, liabilities or contingent
liabilittes or uncertainty with respect to determining their cost, initial recognition will be made on the basis of provisionally calculated values.
Such provisionally calculated values may be adjusted, or additional assets or liabilities may be recognised up to 12 months after the acqui-
sition date, if new information becomes available about conditions prevailing on the acquisition date, which would have affected the catcu-
lation of values on that day, had such information been known.

Non-controlling inferests are measured at the {ransaction date at either fair value or at its proporiionate share of the fair value of identified
net assels, determined on a fransaction-by-transaction basis.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previcusly held interests in the acquired business are remeasured to its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in the income statement. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in Other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income
statement, where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments in connection with the acquisition of a foreign operation with a functional currency other than the Group’s
presentation currency {EUR) are treated as assets and liabilities belonging fo the foreign eniity and translated into the foreign operaticns
functicnal currency at the exchange rate at the transaction date.

Acauisition or sale of equity interests without gaining or losing contral of an entity is accounted for as equity transactions.
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Significant judgements and accounting estimates

Assessment of controf and identification of the acquirer

Confrol is determined fo exist, when the Group is exposed to, or has the rights, to variable returns from its involvement in the investee and
has the abilily to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

The classification of entities where the WS Audioiogy A/S Group controls less than 100% of the voting rights is based on an assessment of
the contractual and operational relationship between the parties. This includes assessing the conditions in shareholders agreements, con-
tracts etc.

WS Audiology A/S was established on 28 February 2019 to effectuate the merger of the Sivantos Group and the Widex A/S Group. As such,
WS Audiology A/S cannot be the accounting acquirer in the business combination, and Management has applied significant judgements in
determination of which entity is the acquirer in the business combination. Based on all facts and circumstances including the shareholders
agreement between the shareholders of WS Audiology A/S, Management has determined that the former shareholders of Widex A/S controls
WS Audiology A/S, and that Widex A/S is the accounting acquirer in the business combination making up the WS Audiology A/S Group.
Management's assessment is based on their analysis of the substance of the shareholders agreement, including the direct ownership rights
over WS Audiology A/S, relative voting rights of WS Audiology A/S after the business combination, the existence of currently exercisable
call options on shares in WS Audiclogy A/S, the composition of the Board of Directors and Executive Management of WS Audioiogy A/S,
the relative size of each company, the terms of the exchange of equity securities and cash to effect the business combination, as well as
other related cwnership rights.

Consequently, the Sivantos Group is treated as the accounting acquiree and the purchase price allocation (PPA) accounting is applied to
the Sivantos Group.

Brands and trademarks

The vaiue of brands and trademarks acquired and their useful lives are based on the brands' and trademarks' market position, expected
long-term developments in the relevant markets and profitability. Management determines the useful life for each brand and trademark
based cn its relative local, regicnal and global market strength, market share, and the current and planned marketing efforts that are helping
to maintain and increase the value of the brand or trademark.

When the value of a well-established brand or frademark is expected to be maintsined for an indefinite period in the relevant markets, and
these markets are expected to be profitable for a long period, the useful life of the brand or trademark is determined 1o be indefinite.

The fair value of brands and trademarks is based on the relief from royalty method, under which the value is calculated from expected future
cash flows for the brands and trademarks. Cash flows are based on key assumptions aboul expected useful iife, royalty rate, growth rate
and tax effects, A post-tax discount rate that reflects the risk-free interest rate with the addition of a risk premium associated with the particular
brand is used to discount the expected future cash flows.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships are valued based on the multi-period excess earnings method. Cash flows related to the customer relationships are
based on the forecasted revenues from existing customers, reduced by the expected future churn. Profits generated from those revenues
are typically adjusted for saved selling costs, given that in most cases part of the selling costs relates solely fo acquiring new customers.
Profits are then netted of taxes and reduced by charges on contributory asset, which are reguired to generate those profits. Cash flows
calculated in this way are discounted and adjusted for tax amortisation benefit.

Contingent consideration

Business combinations may include contingent considerations, e.g. when the Group acquires audiology chains or shops. Such contingent
considerations are usually additional payments to the previous owners, when certain events occur or certain financial resuits are achieved.
The measurement of contingent consideration at fair value at the transacticn date inherently involve significant estimates. In making these
estimates, Managament e.g. considers sales run rates of the acquired business.

5.2 Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

1 May 2018 - 30 September 2019 (17 months}

Termination

EURm Short-term benefits banefits Total
Executive Management 53.7 4.6 £8.3
Boarg of Direclors 0.5 0.0 0.5
Total 54.2 4.6 58.8
1 May 2017 - 30 Aprif 2018 (12 months)
5 Termination

EURM Short-term benefits benefits Total
Executive Management 1.2 0.0 1.2
Board of Direclors 0.4 0.0 0.4

Total 1.6 0.0 1.6
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5.3 Management Participation Program Liability

The Group has in place a Management Participation Program {"MPP") - Certain members of management (the “MPP Participants™) could
acquire a partnership interest in NH Lux ManCo SCSp ("NHSCSp") from NorthHarbour Lux TopCe Sar (*TopCo”), a holding entity that is
fully consclidated within WS Audiology, therefore indirectly having an ownership interest in the intermediate North Harbour Group.

The MPP participants acquired Ordinary shares, which rank pari passue in all respets, as well as preference shares. The reacquisition of
the ownership interests is friggered upon the termination of employment.of MPP Particiants; a liability in this regard is included in Other non-
current liabilities, with reference to note 3.8.

Accounting policies

The acecounting for the shares purchased by management (at fair value, represented by ‘interests’ in NHSCSp) as part of the North Harbour
MPP scheme falls within the scope of IFRS 2 as a cash-based arrangement. A liability is recognised reflecting the fair value of the Group’s
intention to acquire the ‘interests’.

Significant judgements and accounting estimates

The terms of the North Harbour MPP scheme include references to "good” and “bad” leavers, which impaci the return {o be received by
MPP plan participants. The determination of the fair value of the liability under the MPP scheme is mast significantly impacted by the esti-
mation of good vs. bad leavers, and the determination of the fair value of the Group.

The fair value for the MPP at inception and 30 September 2019 reflects the valuation of the combined Group by the parties in the merger
as described in Note 1.1.

5.4 Pension obligations

Post-employment benefits provided by the Group are organized primarily through defined contribution plans as welt as defined benefit plans
which cover almost all of the Group's domestic employees and many of the Group’s foreign employees. Post-employment defined benefit
plans inciude te the major extent pension benefits.

Defined benefit plans

General principles are determined in a corporate pension pelicy. That means inter alia that the Group regularly reviews the design of its
post-employment defined benefif plans. In order to reduce Group's exposure to certain risks associaled with defined benefit plans, such as
longevity, inflation, effects of compensation increase, the Group regularly review and confinuously improves the design of its post-employ-
ment defined benefit plans. The benefits of the defined benefit plan open fo new entrants are based predominantly on contributions made
by the Group and are siill affected by longevity, inflation adjustments and compensation increases, but enly tc a fesser extent. The major
pension plans are funded with assets in segregated pension entities.

The existing defined benefit plans cover approximately as of 30 September 2019 3,135 participants, inciuding 2,058 active employees, 700
former employees with vested rights and 378 retirees and surviving dependents. Individual benefits are generaily based on eligible compen-
sation levels and/for ranking within the Group's hierarchy and years of service. The characteristics of the defined benefit plans and the risks
associated with them vary depending on legal, fiscal and economic requirements in each country. for the major defined benefit plans of the
Group the characteristics and risks are as follows:

Germany:

In Germany, the Group provides pensicn benefils through the cash-balance plan BSAV (Beitragsorientierte Siemens Altersversorgung),
frozen legacy plans and deferred compensation plans. Active employess in Germany participate in the BSAV infreduced in fiscal 2004, A
legacy pension plan {Altzusage) has been transformed into BSAV.

These benefits are predominantly based on contributions made by the Group and returns earned on such contributions, subject ta a minimum
return guaranteed. In general, the BSAV is fully funded from the Group's perspective. Sivantos GmbH has set up a CTA (=Contractual Trust
Arrangement) in order to take precautions of financing all of its BSAV pension obligations, including the Group. Individual benefits under the
frozen legacy plans are based on eligible compensation fevels or ranking within the Greup's hisrarchy and years of service. [n connection
with the implementation of the BSAV, benefits provided under the frozen legacy plans were modified to substantially eliminate the effects of
compensation increases by freezing the accretion of benefits under the majority of these plans. However, these frozen plans stili expose the
Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk and longevity risk. Furthermore, deferred compensation plans are offered
which are funded via a CTA. In Germany no legal or regufatery minimum funding requirements apply. The Trust which is legally separate
manages ils plan assets as trustee in accordance with the respective trust agreements.

u.s.:

The assefs under these pension plans are administered by the Group and are, therefore, the sole responsibility of the Group. The assets
are not separately identifiable; instead the companies had a common right to the trusts' assets. One major defined benefit plan, the Sivantos
Pension Plan, is frozen to new entrants and accretion of new benefits. Employees hired prior to Aprif 1, 2006 participate in the Sivantos
Pension Plan. Most of the defined benefit plan participants’ benefits are calculated using a cash balance formuia; although a small group of
participants are eligible for a benefit based on a final average pay formula. This frozen defined benefit plan exposes the Group to actuarial
risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk and longevity risk.

The defined benefit plan assets are held in a Master Trust. The Group, as the sponsoring employer, has delegated investment oversight of
the plans’ assets to the Investment Committee. The Investment Committee members have a fiduciary duty to act solely in the hest interests
of the beneficiaries according to the trust agreement and U.S. law. The Comrmittee has established an Investment Policy Statement which
articulates the goals and objectives of the plans' invesiment management, including diversifying the assets of the Master Trust with the
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intention of appropriately addressing concentration risks. The trustee of the Master Trust acts only by direction of the Investment Committee.
[tis responsible for the safekeeping of the trust, but generally has no decision making autherity over the plan assets. The legal and regulatory
framework for the plans is based on the applicable U.S. legislation Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA). Based on this
legislation a funding valuation is prepared annually. There is a regulatory requirement to maintain a minimum funding level of 80% in the
defined benefit plans in order to avoid benefit restrictions.

The amounts included in the Group's Consolidated Statements of Financial Position arising from its pension obligations at 30 September
2019 and 30 April 2048 are as follows:

Defined benefit obtigation Fair value of plan assets Totai
EURm 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-19 30-Sep-19
Cermany 61.8 542 7.6
u.s. 427 334 9.3
Others 5.1 2.2 29
Total 109.6 89.8 19.8

The following table show the total defined benefit cost that was recognised in profit or loss account and Other Comprehensive [ncome ("OCI")
at the end of the reporting period.

1 May 2018 -

30 September

EURm 2019
{17 months)

Current senice cost 2.4
Past senice benefit (3.3)
Netinterest expenses 0.3
Liability administration expenses (0.2)
Defined benefit costs recognized in the income statement (0.8}

The costs are recognized in the following income statement items;

Refurn on plan assets (excluding amounts included in netinferest expense and netinterestincome} (3.3}
Remeasurement losses on defined benefit obligations i3.2
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 9.9

Change in defined benefit cbligations:

Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year .3
Addilions - Business combinations 91.2
Current senvce cost 2.6
Interest expense 24
Contributions paid 0.2
Nef accumulaled actuarial gains 13.2
Benefils paid (3.4)
Prepaid costfor post employvee benefit (0.2)
Foreign currency effects 26
Plan sefilement (0.3)

Defined benefit cbligation at 30 September 2019 109.6
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1 May 2018 -
30 September

EURm 2019
(17 months)

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year -
Additions through business combinations 8§2.2

Interestincome 2.0
Remeasurement (losses)/ gains (Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in netinterest income and 33
netinterest expense) )
Conftributions paid 0.2
Benefits paid (1.8)
Employer contributions 1.8
Liability administration cosis (0.2)
Foreign currency effects 2.3
Fair value of plan assets at 30 September 2019 89.8
Plan assets comprise of the following:
Investment funds 86.7
Cash and cash equivalents 1.1
Qualified insurance policies 1.8
Others 3.2
Total 89.8
Quloted 86.5
Unquoted 3.3
89.8

Actuarial assumptions
Assumed discount rates, compensaticn increase rates, pension progression rates and mortality rates used in calculating the DBO vary
according to the economie and other conditions of the country in which the retirement plans are situated.

The mortality tables used for the actuarial valuation of the DBO were as follows {most significant countries}:
Germany Heubeck Richttafeln 2005G (modified}
.S, RP-2014 Employee and Healthy Annuitant Tables projected with Scale MP-2015 for ail years

The DBO was only significantly affected by other financial assumptions in Germany and U.S, For Germany, the long-term rate of compen-
sation increase and the pension increase rate were constant on average in fiscal year 2018. For U.S., the DBCG was mainly affected by the
discount rate as the plan is frozen ta new entrants and accretion of new benefits,

The BBQ is also affected by assumed future inflation rates. The effect of inflation is recognized within the assumptions above where appli-
cable.

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages).

30-8ep-19
Germany
Discount rate 0.64%
Future salary growth 2.25%
Expected return on assets 0.64%
Expected pension progression 1.75%
LS.
Discount rate 2.80%
Future salary growth NA
Expected return on assets 3.90%
Expected pension progression 3.00%

Assumptions regarding future morality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables. The current longevities underiying the
values of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date were as follows.
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EURmM 30-5ep-19

Germany
Langevity at age 55 for current pensicners

Males 20.2
Females 23.7

Longevity at age 55 for current pensioners with 10% reduction in mortality rates

Males 211
Females 24,5
u.s.

Longevity af age 55 for current pensioners

Males 20.00
Females 31.40

Lengevily at age 55 for current pensioners with 10% reduction in mortality rates

Males 30.00
Femates 32.4C

The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit cbligation was 15,3 years at 30 Seplember 2019,

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation
of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

Sensitivity analysis

As the significant part of the DBO results from the German and U.S. entities, the sensitivity analysis were as follows:

30-Sep-19
0.5% 0.5%
EURm increase decrease

Germany

Biscountrate (3.967) 5,112
Rale of compensation increase i4 13)
Rafe of pension progression 2,821 (2.560)
-1 year  +1year
Life expectancy {1,705) 1,938
us 0.5% 0.5%
’ increase decrease
Discount rate (1,987} 2,165
-1year  +1year
Life expectancy (1,668) 1812

The Company expects to pay EUR 5 million in confributions to its defined benefit plans in year 2019,

Defined contribution plan
The amount recognised as an expense {or defined contribution plans at 30 September 2018 was EUR13 millicn.

Accounting policies

Defined contribution plans

The WS Audiology A/S Group operates a number of defined contribution plans around the World. These plans are externally funded in
entities, e.g. insurance entities, that are legally separate from the Group. Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in the
inceme statement in the year to which they relate.

Defined benefit plans
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The WS Audiology A/S Group also operates defined benefit plans in a few jurisdictions, primarily in Germany and the USA.

The liability and costs for the year for defined benefit plans are determined using the projected unit credit method. This reflects services
rendered by employees to the valuation dates and is based on actuarial assumptions regarding future compensation and benefit increases,
morality, expected return on plan assets and discount rates. Discount rates are based on average market yields of high-quality corporate
bonds in the country and/or currency in which the pensicn liabilities are expecied to be settled.

Current service cost, past service cost and settlements for post-employment benefils as well as other administration costs which are unre-
lated to the management of plan assets are recognised in the income statement and allocated among functional costs, following the func-
tional area of the corresponding profit and cost centre. Administration costs which are refated to the management of plan assets and taxes
directly flinked to the return en plan assels and payable by the plan itself are included in the return on plan assets and are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in Other comprehen-
sive income in the period in which they arise. Past service costs are recognised immediately in the income statement.

For unfunded plans, the Group recognises a post-employment liability as non-current liability. For funded plans, the Group offsets the fair
vajue of plan assels with the benefit obligations, and recognises the net amount, after adjustments for effects refated to any asset ceiling,
as a non-current liability or other current assets,

5.5 Contingent assets and liabilities

Guarantees

The Group has issued Corporate Guarantees, mainly to the business partners, outstanding in an amount of EUR 100 miillich as of 30
September 2019.

in addition, the Group has a coniingent obligation to indemnify the issuing Banks for Bankers Guarantees for an amount up to EUR 6.6
million as of 30 September 2019. None of the ouistanding guarantees are likely to be drawn, hence no provisions have been made.

Security

The Group is securing an overdraft facility for a related company through a Standby Letter of Credit over EUR -* miltion as of 30 September
2019,

* The stated amount is less than EUR 1 million.

Quistanding Lawsuits and disputes

The Group is, from fime to time, subject to legal disputes in connection with its business aclivities. In the light of the number of legal disputes
and proceedings in which the Group is involved, it cannot be ruled out that some of these proceedings could result in rulings against the
Group. Although the Group maintains liability insurance in its non-amounts the Group considers consistent with industry practice, it may not
be fully insured against all potential damages that may arise out of any claims to which the Group may be party in the ordinary course of the
Group's business. At this time, however the Group does not expect any significant negative effects on the Group's financial posifion or
finance and earnings situation resulting from legal disputes.

The Group seeks to make adequate provisions for any legal disputes and proceedings, and assesses the likely outcome in which the Group
is involved.

For information on lease obligations, please refer to note 5.8.
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5.6 Associates

Receivables

Investments in from

EURmM associates associates
Cost at1 May 2018 7.5 4.5
Share of post acquisition of retained earnings (0.1} {2.3)
Carrying amount at 30 September 2619 7.4 2.2
Receivahles

Investments in from

EURm associates associates
Costat1 May 2017 58 29
Share of post acquisiton of retained earnings 0.7 1.6
Carrying amount at 30 April 2018 6.5 4.5

Please refer to note 5.11 for a list of associates.

Aggregate information about the Group’s investments in associates that are not individually material, not adjusted for the proportion of
ownership interests held by the Group, are as follows:

Summarized information of the associate
1 May 2018 -
30 September 1 May 2017 -
2019 30 April 2018

EURM {17 months) (12 months)
Non-gurrent assets 2186 8.1
Current assets 7.2 7.2
Current liabilities (12.4) (3.8)
Net assets 16.4 11.5
Revenue 12.4 8.5
Netloss from continuing operation (0.6} (0.1)
Total comprehensive income (0.6} (0.1}

Accounting policies

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control over the financial and operating
policies. A joint veniure is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control over the financial and operating policies, and where the Group
has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to ils assets and obligations for its lizbilities.

Investments in associates and joint veniures are accounted for using the equity method. This entails that the investments are initiafly recog-
nised at cost and adjusted thereafier to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive incoma of the associate
or joint venture calculated in accordance with the Group's accounting policies. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group's interest in such associate or jeint venture, the Group discontinues recognising its share of future losses.
Additional losses are recognised enly fo the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive cbligations or made payments on behatf
of the associate or joint venture,

5.7 Non cash adjustments

1 May 2018 - 30

1 May 2017 -
ggf;emher 30 April 2018
EURm (17 months) (12 months}
Unrealised loss of loans and borrowings 454 -
Others {6.0} (0.1}

Total 39.4 (0.1)
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Significant non-cash transactions

WS Audiology A/S Group was established on 28 February 2019 through issuance of shares in return for the shares in Widex A/S and the
shares in North Harbour Lux TopCo S,a.r.k. Please refer {o note 1 for further information on the establishment of the group. Prior to the
establishment of the WS Audiclogy A/S Group, a number of non-cash transactions occurred in Widex A/S (these consolidated financial
statements are a continuation of the consolidated financial statements of Widex A/S Group as explained in note 1) to align the capital and
financing in the Widex Greup and the Sivantos Group. These transactions include:

s Declaration of dividends to parent entity of Widex A/S of EUR 227.7 million

s Partly settlement of payables to parent entity (existing loans from parent entity and dividend declared) through receipt of loan from

Auris [l of EUR 344.1

« Settlement of remaining payables to parent entity through receipt of capital contribution from parent entity of EUR 41.1  million

5.8 Lease obligations

Future payment obligations under operating leases are as follows:

30 April
30 September 2019 2018
EURmM
Rent 27341 179.3
Other operating leases 9.3 3.8
Total 2824 183.1
Operating leases:
Less than one year 50.2 19.8
Between one and five years 122.2 548
More than five years 110.1 108.5
Total 282.5 183.1
Operating leases recognised in the income statement 69.9 337

Accounting policies

Finance leases, which transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the [eased item to the Group as lessee, are
capitalised at the commencement date of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease paymenis. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and repayment of the [ease liability, so as to achieve a constant

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Leased assels are depreciated over the lease {erm, or if shorter, the expected useful
life or the assets.

Leases of assets under which subsiantially all risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operaling leases,
Costs related to operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis.

5.9 Fees to auditors appointed at the annual general meeting

EURm Deloitte Others KPMG
Audit fees 0.4 0.1 0.3
Other assurance related services 0.8 - 0.6
Tax services 0.4 0.1 -
Other services 2.8 0.1 0.5
Total 4.2 0.3 1.4

1 May 2017 - 30 April 2018
(12 months)

EURm Deloitfe
Audit fees 3.6
Tax services 0.2
Qther services 0.2

Total 1.0
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5.10 Related parties

Related parties include T&W Medical A/S, the parent entity and ultimate parent controlling WS Audiclogy A/S, as well as transactions with
associates.

Other related parties in the summary below include those entilies controlled by T&W Medical A/S .

Transactions with related parties

In addition to the related party disclosure that is disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following significant transactions be-
tween the Group and its related parties took place at terms agreed during the fiscal year 2018/19 and 2017/18.

1 May 2018 -30 1 May 2017 - 30

September 2019 Aprii 2018
EURm (17 months} {12 months)
Transactions with shareholder
- Loans fromrelaied parties (70.6) {31.8)
- Repayment of loans to related parties (3.0) {(3.8)
- Interest on loans 196.8 415
Transactions with associates
- Sales of goods and services 10.9 6.7
Cther related parties
- Sales of goods and services 1.8 1.2
- Purchase of goods and service (24.8) (8.8)
Total transactions with related parties 111.2 5.2

As at 30 September 2019, the outstanding balances with the associates are EUR 3.0million (30 April 2018: EUR 4.5 million).

Transactions with related individuals

The Group's Executive management is defined as those persons, who are responsibie for the Group's worldwide operating business, based
on their function within the Group or the interests of WS Audiology A/S and registered directors in the parent company. For information about
remuneration to Executive management and Board of Directors refer to note 5.2.

The following individuals belong or belonged to the Group's Executive management:

Year 2018/19 Director Member of Exeuctive Management since/ until
Executive management

Jargen Jensen CEQ Widex A/S May 2018 — February 2019

Jorgen Jensen CEQ WS Audiclogy A/S Group February 2019 — August 2019

Eric Bernard CEO WS Audiology A/S Group September 2019

Dr. Wolfgang Oliig CFO WS Audiology A/S Group February 2019 — August 2019

Henrik S8ender CFO WS Audiology A/S Group September 2019

Year 2017/18 Director Member of Executive management since/ until
Jargen Jensen CEO Widex A/S May 2017 — Aprit 2018

Board of Directors

Jan Tepholm Chairman Widex A/S May 2017 — April 2018

Anders Steen Westermann Member May 2017 - April 2018

Sdren Erik Westermann Member May 2017 — April 2018

Richard Tepholm Member May 2017 — April 2018

Julian Tepholm Member May 2017 — Aprit 2018

Lars Vinge Frederiksen Member May 2017 — Aprit 2018

in fiscal years 2018/19 and 2017/18, no other major transactions took place between the Group and members of the Executive Manage-
ment.
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5.11 Companies in the WS Audiology A/S Group

List of the Group's active companies included in the Censolidated Financial Statements;

Com pany Country Equity Interestin %

WS Audiology A/S Denmark 100
North Harbour Topco Sari Luxembourg 99
North Harbour Mideo S.a.r.l Luxembourg 100
Auris Luxembourgh If S.A. Luxembourg 100
Auris Luxembourg Il Sard Luxembourg 106
Widex A/S Denmark 100
Sivantos Holding Singapore Pte. Lid. Singapore 100

Subsidiaries of Widex A/S

EMEA-LA

Bloorhearing ApS Denmark 100
Investment DK ApS Denmark 1C0
Veenhuis Medical Audio BV Netherlands 100
Widex UK Ltd. UK G0
Widex Merketing Services Lid. UK 100
Coselgi UK Lid. UK 100
Widex DK AIS Denmark 100
Coselgi DK ApS Denmark 100
SAS Clermont Distribution France 98
Progression SAS France 100
Saveire Audilion SAS France 100
Widex S.A.S France 100
Winster House Lid. UK 100
Acuitis Optical & Hearing Limited UK 100
Bloom Hearing Specialists Lid. UK 100
Aberdeen Hearing Services Ltd. UK 100
Bonavox Limied Ireland 100
Widex Chile SpA Chite 100
Widex Uruguay Uruguay 51
COW-Audicion en Alfa Definicién S.A. de CV Mexico 9g
Widex Argentina S.A Argentina 51
Centra Auditivo Widex Brasitom Ltda Brazil 100
Communicare Aparelhos Auditivos Ltda Brazil 100
Sivantos Solucuoes Auditiva Ltd, Brazil 100
Chestenbaum AG Switzerland 100
Widex Horgerate AG Switzerland 100
Widex Hargerate GrmbH Germany 100
Widex AB Sweden 100
Horsehuset Aktiebolag Sweden 100
Widex Biocord AB Sweden 100
Widex OO0 LLC Russia 100
Widex Norge AS Norw ay 100
Widex-Reabilitacio Auditiva Lda. Portugal 100
Coselgi Portugal S.A. Portugal 100
Widex Service O00 LLC Russia 100
Widex Akustik OY Finland 100
Widex Lines s.r.o Czech Repuklic 100
Widex Poland Sp. Z.o.¢ Foland 60
Widex South Africa Pty. Lid. South Africa 10C
Widex Regional Operation Center EVEA Foland 100
Widex Eesti OU Estonia 100
Widex ltalia S.r. ltaly 100
ReOton LLC Ukraine 100
Widex Siusni Aparati d.o.o Bosnia 60
Widex-Slovion Slovakia s.r.o Slovakia 100
Coselgi S.p.A Italy 100
Widex Tibbi ve Teknik Chihazlar San.ve Tic. AS Turkey 100
Widex Trading d.0.0 Ljiubjjana Slovenia 80
Slusni Aparati d.o.o. Widex Ljubliana Slovenia 81
Widex-H Kft Hungary 100
Audiofon Kit Hungary 100
Widex Italia s.r.l. [taty 100
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Asia-Pacific
Widex Hearing Aid Sdn Bhd Malaysia 100
Widex Sirgapore Pte Lid Singapore 100
Bloom Hearing Co. Ltd. Japan 100
Widex Co. Ltd. Japan 100
Widex Hearing Aid (Shanghal) Co. Lid. China 100
Widex Korea Lid, South Korea 100
Widex India Private Ltd. India 100
Widex New Zealand Ltd. New Zealand 100
Widex Australia Piy. Ltd. Ausiralia 100
Active Hearing Ply. Ltd. Ausiralia 100
Hearclear Audiology Pty. Lid. Australia 100
Bloem Hearing Ltd. New Zealand 100
Widex Hong Kong Hearing & Speech Centre Ltd. Heng Kong 100
Starry Hearing & Speech Centre Ltd. Heng Kong 65
North-America
Widex Canada Ltd. Canada 100
TW Group Canada Lid. Canada 100
Lifestyle Hearing Corporation inc. Canada 100
Lifestyle Hearing Corperation USA Inc. USA 100
Widex USA Inc. USA 100
Company Country Equity Interestin %
Subsidiaries of Lifestyle Hearing Corporation nc.
North-America
Lifestyle Hearing Netw ork Inc. Canada 100
Helix Hearing inc. Canada 100
Hearcanada e, Canada 100
Helix Service Corporation Inc. Canada 100
Com pany Country Equity Interestin %
Subsidiaries of Lifestyle Hearing Corporation USA Inc.
North-America
Happy hearing LLC UsSA 100
Audiology Management Group Inc, USA 100
Helix Hearing Care {California) Inc. usa 100
Lifestyle Managed Care LLC USA 100
Lifestyle Hearing Professionals LL.C USA 100
New Asheville Audiology Services PLLC usa 100
Helix Hearing Care (Ohia) LLC. USA 100
Hefix Hearing Care (Texas) LLC USA 108
Helix Hearing Care (Florida) LL.C UsA 100
Paysician Audiclogy Services Ing, USA 100
Hearing Center of Brow ards Inc. USA 100
Randa Nashour-Shousher LLC USA 51
Hear Again Hearing Auds LLC. USA 60
Helix Hearing Care Naples LLC USA 50
The Hearing Canter of ENTA LLC USA &0
Medical Hearing Systems LLC USA 70
PAS Developmeni LL.C USA 55
Hands on Hearing Inc. USA 51
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Other equity investments

HIMSA A/S Denmark 25
HBISA ) afs Denmark 17
HMSA | K/S Danmark 23
HIMP A/S Denmark g
K/S HiMPP Danmark 10
Sound Advice Hearing Ltd. UK 49
D Med Hearing Company Thailand 38
Widex Columbia SAS Columbia 20
Hear-Mart Holdings LLC. USA 49
Audiclogy Associates of Wasichester LLC USA 49
Smartcare LLC usa 10
Widex Servicios Technico S.A. Spain 30
Widex Audifones S.A. Spain 30
Instituto Auditive Widex C.A. Venezuela 44
Widex Macau Hearing & Speech Cenire Lid. Macau 49

Subsidiary of Sivantos Holding Singapore Pte. Ltd.
Sivantos Pte. Lid. Singapare 100

Subsidiaries of Sivantos Pte. Lid.

EMEA-LA
Sivantos Holding Germany GmbH Germany 100
Sivantos A/S Denmark 100
Sivantos B.V. Netherlands 100
Oorwerk B.V. Netherfands 100
Oorw erk den Haag B.V. Netherlands 100
Hoortechnish Centrum Schagen B.W Netheriznds 100
Sivantos Isitme Cihazlari Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S. Turkey 100
Sivantos SolugBes Auditivas Ltda. Brazil 100
Sivantos Europe GmbH Germany 100
Honw elt GrrbH Austria 100
Medakustik GmbH Austria 100
AS IBERICA Soluciones Auditivas S.L.U. Spain 100
Sivantos (RUS) LLC Russia 100 Y
Entone SAS France 100
Biotone Technologie SAS France 100 %
Asia-Pacific
Sivantos K.K. Japan 100
Best Sound K.K. Japan 100
audibene K.K. Japan 100
Sivantos Limited Korea 160
Hear.com Korea Limited Kerea 100

Subsidiaries of Sivantos Holding Germany GmbH
Sivantos GmbH Germany 100
audibene GmbH Germany 100
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Com pany Country Bquity Interest in %
Subsidiaries of Sivantos GmbH

EMEA-LA
AS-AUDIO SERVICE GmbH Germany 100
Signia GmbH Germany 100
Sivantos Kft. Hungary 100
Sivantos AG Switzerland 100
Sivantos AS Norw ay 100
Sivantos s.r.o Czech Republic 100
Sivantos Sp. z 0.0. Poland 100
Sivantos S.r.l taly 100
Sivantos S.A.8. France 100
Sivantos Limited United Kingdom 100
Sivantos (Ply) Ltd South-Africa 100

North-America
Sivantos, Inc. USA 100
Avudiology Distribution, LLC UsA 100
HearX West, LLC USA 50%
HearX West, Inc, usa 100
HearUSA IPA, nc. USA 100
hear.com, LLC USA 100
Sivantos Inc. Canada 100
Shoebox, e, Canada 100
TruHearing, Ihe. USA 100
TruHearing IPA LLC USA 100
Hearing Care Solutions, Inc UsA 100
Harmony Hearing Services LLC USA 106
MEDMus Health Sclutions LLC USA 100
Cleanw ater Clinical Inc USA 100

Asia-Pacific
Sivantos {Suzhou) Co. Lid. China 100
Sivanios India P, Lid India 100
Soundrise Hearing Solutions Private Limited India 100
Sivantos Ply Ltd Australia 100

Subsidiaries of audibene GmbH

audibena GmbH Sw iizerfand 100
Audipcare Hearing Experts Mataysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100
audibene B.V. Netherlands 100
lhre Hargerate Beratung GmbH Germany 100
Hear.com - Simply Good Hearing Inc Canada 100
Hearing Experts (Thailand) Co. Ltd. Thailand 100 %

Other equity investments

Koden Co,, Ltd. Japan 43
Kikoeno Soudanshitsu Co., Lid. Japan 50
Kanto Hocheouki Ca., Lid. Japan 25
HIMPP A/S Denmark 11
HMSA $AS Denmark 17
HIMSA HK/S Denmark 15

5.12 Significant events after the balance sheet date

There have been no non-adjusting events afther the balance sheet date that wouid be expected to influence the economic decisions that
users make on the basis of these financial statements.

5.13 Approval of the consolidated financial statements

The financial statements of WS Audiology A/S were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 12 February 2020
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Parent financial statements
Income statement

28 February

2019 -30
September
2019

EURm Notes {7 months)
General and administration expenses (0.6)
Operating loss before tax (0.6)
Tax on profit/(loss) 2.1 -
Loss for the year (0.8)
Balance sheet

30 September
EURmM Notes 2019
Assets
Investments in subsidiaries 3.1 3,835.5
Total non-current assets 3,935.5
Total assets 38355
Equity and Liabilities
Share capital 4.1 100.0
Other reserves 33,8355
Accumulated losses (0.6}
Total equity attributable to the shareholders of WS Audiology AIS 3,934.9
Other liabilites 0.1
Total non-current liabilities 0.1
Other current financial liabilities 0.3
Amounts due to related parties 0.2
Total current liabilities 0.5
Total equity and liabilities 39355
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Statement of cash flow
28 February
2019 - 30
September
2019
EURm Notes (7 months)
Operating activities
l.oss for the period, representing cash flow from operating activities before
changes in working capital {0.8}
Change in other payables 0.6
Cash flow from operating activities
Net cash flow -
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pariod -
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period -
Statement of changes in equity
Accumulated Total
EURmM Share capital losses equity
Equity at date of incorporation, 28 February 2019 100.0 - 100.0
Capital increase in relation to the formation of company
on 28 February - - 38355
Profit/(loss) for the period - (0.8) (0.8}

Equity at 30 September 2019 100.0

(0.6) 3,934.9
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Notes to the parent financial statements

1. Basis for preperation

2. Results of the year
2.1 Tax on profit/(loss}

3. Operating assets and liabilities

3.1 investment in subsidiaries

4, Other disclosures
4.1 OQutstanding shares
4.2 Related parlies

4.3 Fees paid to the auditor appointed at the Annual General Meeting
4.4  Significant events after the balance sheet date

4.5  Approval of the consolidated financial statements

1 Basis of preparation

The parent financial statements separate financial statements for WS Audiology A/S have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as

adopted by the European Union (EU} and further requirements in the Danish Financial Statements Act.

The parent financial statements are presented in Euros (EUR} which is the functional currency of WS Audiology A/S. All values are rounded

to the nearest million (EUR) with one decimal, except where indicated otherwise.

2.1 Tax on profit/(loss)

EURm

28 Feh 2019-30
September 2019
(7 months)

Tax on profit/(loss}
Current tax for the year
Deferred tax for the year

Total

28 Feb 2019- 30

September 2019
Recongciliation of effective tax rate {7 months)
Danish tax rate 22%
Expected income tax {expense)/benefit (0.1)
Expenses not deductible 0.1

Total
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3.1 Investment in subsidiaries

EURmM 30 September 2019

Cost at 28 February 2019 "
Additions, capitat contributions 39355

Cost at 30 September 2019 3,935.5

Group companies are listed on Note 5.10 of the Group financial statements.

As set out in Note 1 fo the Consoiidated financial statements, the investment in subsidiary represents a significant non-cash transaction.

4.1 Outstanding shares
For more information regarding outstanding shares, please refer to Note 4.1 in the consolidated financial statements.

4.2 Related parties

T&W Medical A/S is the parent entity and ultimate parent controlling WS Audiology A/S. There have been no transactions with subsidiaries
or other related parties during the period.

4.3 Fees paid to the auditor appointed at the Annual General Meeting

Fees paid to Deloitte P/S for assurance related services for the period ended 30 September 2018 was EUR 0.2 million.

4.4 Significant events after the balance sheet date
There have been no non-adjusting events afther the balance sheet date that would be expected $o influence the economic degcisions that
users make on the basis of these financial statements.

4.5 Approval of the consolidated financial statements
The financial statements of WS Audiology A/S were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 12 February 2020.
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Entity Information

Entity

WS Audiclogy A/S
Nymglievej 6
3540 Lynge

Business Registration No (CVR): 40296638
Founded: 28.02,2019
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Financial year: 28.02.2019 -~ 30.09.2019

Board of Directors
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Jan Tepholm, Vice-Chairman
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Luis Ignacio Martinez Azkorra

Kasper Grundtvig Knokgaard

Jes Carge Munk Hansen

Julian Tepholm

Marcus Eckart Friedrich Karl Brennecke

Executive Management
Eric Alain Bernard, Chief £xecutive Officer
Henrik Skak Bender, Chief Financial Officer

Auditors

Deloitte Statsautoriseref Revisionspartnerselskab
Weidekampsgade 8
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Statement by Management on the Annual Report

The Board of Directors and the Executive Management have today considered and approved the Annual Report of WS Audiology A/S for
the financial year May 1, 2018 to September 30, 2019.

The Annual Report is presented in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, which have been adopted by the EU
and disclosure requirements of the Danish Financial Statements Act.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group’s and the
Parent's assets, liabilities and financial position at September 30, 2019 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial
year May 1, 2018 to September 30, 2019.

We also find that the Management commentary provides a fair statement of developments in the activities and financial situation of the
Group and the Parent, financial results for the period, the general financial position of the Group and the Parent, and a description of
conditions referred to therein.

We recommend that the Annual Report be approved at the Annual General Meeting.

Lynge, February 12, 2020
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Independent auditors’ report

To the shareholders of WS Audiology A/S
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements and the parent finangial statements of WS Audiclogy A/S for the financial year May
1. 2018 10 September 30, 2019, which comprise the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, balance sheet, statement of
cash flow, statement of changes in equity and notes, including a summary of significant aceounting policies, for the Group as wefl as the
Parent. The consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and additional requirements of the Danish Financial Statements Act,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group's and the
Parent’s financial position at 30 September 2019, and of the results of their eperations and cash flows for the financtal year May 1, 2018 to
September 30, 2019 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ard additional requirements of
the Danish Financial Statements Act.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intermnational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and the additional requirements applicable in Den-
mark. Our responsibilities under those standards and requirements are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements section of this auditor's report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board of Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ((ESBA Code) and the addi-
tional requirements applicable in Denmark, and we have fulfilled our cther ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements, We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Statement on the management commentary
Management is responsible for the management commentary.

Our gpinion on the consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements does not cover the management commentary, and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

I connection with our audit of the consolidated financial stalements and the parent financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
management commentary and, in doing so, consider whether the management commentary is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements and the parent financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materialiy mis-
stated.

Moreover, it is our responsibility to consider whether the management commentary provides the information required under the Danish
Financial Statements Act.

Based on the work we have performed, we conclude that the management commentary is in accordance with the consaiidated financial
statements and the parent financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Danish Financial State-
menis Act. We did not identify any material misstatement of the management commentary.

Management's responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements

Management is 7esponsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements and parent financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and additional requirements of the Danish
Financial Statements Act, and for such internal control as Management determines is necessary 10 enable the preparation of consolidated
financiaf statements and parent financial statements that are free from material misstatemant, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements, Management is respensible for assessing the Graup's
and the Parent's ability to continue as a going concern, for disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern, and for using the
going concern basis of acceunting in preparing the consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements unless Manage-
ment either intends to liquidate the Group or the Entity or to cease operations, or has no reafistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinicn,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs and the additional
requiremants applicable in Denmark will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individuatly or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements and these parent financial statements.
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As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and the additional requirements applicable in Denmark, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Parent’s internal control.
» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by Management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated
financial statements and the parent financial statements, and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Parent’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group and the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements and the parent financial state-
ments, including the disclosures in the notes, and whether the consolidated financial statements and the parent financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view,

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Copenhagen, 12-02-2020
Deloitte

Statsautoriseret Revisionspartnerselskab
Business Registration No 33 96 35 56
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